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            1        SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA, APRIL 3, 2000 - 10:00 A.M.

            2                            *  *  *  *  *

            3           ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE COOKE:  The Commission will 

            4    be in order. 

            5               This is the time and the place for 

            6    the evidentiary hearings in Rulemaking 99-11-022. 

            7               We will begin today with opening arguments 

            8    in this case. 

            9               The order for this, before -- before we take 

           10    a break, the order will be PG&E, SDG&E, Edison, and 

           11    followed by ORA, then we'll be taking a short break, and 

           12    we'll come back with the rest of the parties. 

           13               Before we start the opening argument, I have 

           14    two additional appearances: 

           15               Beth Dunlop for Grueneich Resource Advocates -- 

           16    this is an additional Appearance with Ms. Grueneich who will 

           17    remain as lead --

           18           MS. DUNLOP:  Yes. 

           19           ALJ COOKE:  -- and for -- that's on behalf of 

           20    FPL Energy; and 

           21               Joseph M. Karp, White & Case, for California 

           22    Cogeneration Council, Watson Cogeneration Company.  This is 

           23    also an additional Appearance.  Mr. Bloom will remain the 

           24    lead; and Mr. Karp is added as well.  

           25               All right.  We have 22 minutes for each of 

           26    the parties, and I've got a little clock that I'll be 

           27    watching you on. 

           28               The way I understand it is parties can reserve up 
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            1    to 10 minutes for rebuttal. 

            2               So, with that, let's turn to PG&E. 

            3               Ms. Reid?

            4                        ARGUMENT OF MS. REID

            5            MS. REID:  Good morning. 

            6               My remarks will be fairly brief.  I would like to 

            7    reserve some time for rebuttal at the end. 

            8               I'm going to concentrate on PG&E's pricing 

            9    proposals because I think, for the most part, parties are 

           10    fairly on the same page when it comes to the issues about 

           11    criteria of the market functioning properly. 

           12               As you're aware from our testimony, PG&E is 

           13    proposing that, once the Commission determines that the 

           14    market is functioning properly, that the Commission adopt 

           15    the PX day-ahead hourly price by zone in which the QF is 

           16    located for its pricing proposal; and we believe that that 

           17    has several advantages:  

           18               Number one, it's clearly PX-based, as provided in 

           19    Section 390(c); it also has transparent pricing -- the 

           20    prices are known and they're published -- so there won't be 

           21    any controversy over what the pricing is for purposes of a 

           22    PX-based SRAC; and, thirdly, since the utilities currently 

           23    are purchasing most of their energy demand through the PX at 

           24    this time, it's a reasonable representation of utility 

           25    avoided cost. 

           26               We do understand that some parties have 

           27    criticized PG&E's proposal because it doesn't represent the 

           28    market with the QFs out -- and this is the QF-in and -out 
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            1    methodology that's been proposed by IEP and others -- we 

            2    would just note, in reply, that there is nothing in the 

            3    regulations implementing PURPA that requires an in and out 

            4    methodology, and we think, as the Commission has recognized 

            5    in prior decisions, that it has reasonable discretion to set 

            6    utility avoided costs. 

            7               We think the in/out methodology suffers from 

            8    a number of flaws: 

            9               Number one, we think that it doesn't use 

           10    transparent pricing, it's not a market construct, so it will 

           11    be subject to ongoing dispute and Commission intervention to 

           12    try to resolve these disputes. 

           13               We think, with the advent of the PX and with the 

           14    new market structures, that AB 1890 did not contemplate this 

           15    ongoing Commission intervention in mar- -- in QF pricing. 

           16               But, in any event --

           17           MR. SKAFF:  Could you speak up?  It's hard to hear in 

           18    the back. 

           19           MS. REID:  Oh, I'm sorry. 

           20               In any event, regardless of what pricing 

           21    determinations the Commission makes in this proceeding, we 

           22    think that the Commission should remain flexible to revisit 

           23    its determinations in light of the ongoing maturity of the 

           24    market. 

           25               In particular, we think the end of the 

           26    buy/sell -- mandatory buy/sell requirement might provide 

           27    some information that would require the Commission to look 

           28    again at its pricing determinations here. 
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            1               And, finally, regarding Section 390(d), we think 

            2    that 390(d) does provide the methodology to determine any 

            3    capacity that should not be paid to QFs that are receiving 

            4    fixed or firm forecast capacity payments already. 

            5               We would also argue that the Commission should 

            6    remain flexible in interpreting the provisions of 

            7    Section 390(d). 

            8               We think that the derivation of the language in 

            9    390(d) would suggest that the Commission has to look at that 

           10    provision in light of the new market products and PX 

           11    protocols. 

           12               We gave, as an example in our testimony, one 

           13    program, the Demand Reduction Bidding Program that might 

           14    provide data that will be helpful to the Commission in 

           15    determining the value of capacity; and we think, as the 

           16    market matures, there will be other programs and products 

           17    and protocols that would inform the Commission's thinking 

           18    about applying the criter- -- the methodology in 390(d). 

           19               So we think the Commission should remain flexible 

           20    to determine whether and to what extent the methodology in 

           21    390(d) comports with or jibes with the new market and new 

           22    market functions and products. 

           23               And that's basically our opening statement. 

           24           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Ms. Reid. 

           25               Mr. Barnes?  

           26           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Could I suggest that, if 

           27    there's difficulty hearing the speaker, an easy solution is 

           28    to walk up and sit in row two.  You'll be very, very close 
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            1    to the speaker. 

            2               I'm sorry.  That's a constructive suggestion, not 

            3    a criticism. 

            4           ALJ COOKE:  Mr. Barnes?  

            5                       ARGUMENT OF MR. BARNES

            6           MR. BARNES:  Commissioner Neeper, your Honor, 

            7    Greg Barnes on behalf of San Diego Gas & Electric. 

            8               I'd like to take my few minutes today to focus on 

            9    the big picture. 

           10               This proceeding is part of the State of 

           11    California's effort to implement a federal statute, the 

           12    PURPA statute; specifically, the California Legislature has 

           13    passed a statute in aid of implementation of PURPA which 

           14    states that, on certain findings by this Commission, the QFs 

           15    will be paid a PX-based price which is the market for 

           16    electricity here in California. 

           17               As part of this big picture, this Commission is 

           18    ultimately, with a lot of leeway, nonetheless ultimately 

           19    bound to implement the intent of the United States Congress; 

           20    and that the ultimate interpreter of the statute, other than 

           21    the federal courts, is the Federal Energy Regulatory 

           22    Commission, and that Commission has given us some guidance 

           23    in the context of looking at California's implementation of 

           24    the PURPA statute.  That guidance is pertinent here. 

           25               Big picture:  Congress has given certain benefits 

           26    to QFs for the purpose of encouraging the conservation of 

           27    energy; and those rights are -- benefits are the right to 

           28    interconnect with the local utility;
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            1               It's also the right to have the utilities take 

            2    all of the QFs' output;

            3               The QF has a right to backup power from the 

            4    utility at nondiscriminatory rates; and

            5               It has the right to be paid for this electricity 

            6    at rates that are nondiscriminatory, that encourage the 

            7    development of QFs, and that are capped at the utility's 

            8    avoided cost. 

            9               And something that's often lost is that avoided 

           10    costs, however you defined that, is a cap.  

           11               The State may properly decide to pay less to QFs 

           12    or to have the utilities pay less to QFs than this avoided- 

           13    cost cap if the State finds that the rate is 

           14    nondiscriminatory and still encourages QFs in small power 

           15    production. 

           16               So that is the context in which this proceeding 

           17    has taken place, that the Legislature in, in part, 

           18    implementing this Commission's 1995 Preferred Policy 

           19    Decision, has stated that if -- the Commission is to make 

           20    some findings that the PX is functioning properly for 

           21    purposes of payments to QFs.  And that's why we're here. 

           22               The proceeding has been phased; and, as part of 

           23    that, we are going to develop criteria for determining 

           24    whether the PX is, indeed, functioning properly. 

           25               We're also to determine the appropriate short-run 

           26    avoided cost payment, and whether there's a capacity payment 

           27    to be made as well.

           28               I hope I fairly summarized that. 
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            1               But if you'd step back and look at common sense 

            2    and the big picture, whatever criteria the Commission comes 

            3    up with, it has to make sense.  And today 30 million 

            4    California consumers are paying energy prices in their 

            5    electric rates based on the PX price. 

            6               Electric generators are being paid the PX price. 

            7               So in focusing on the detail of arriving at 

            8    criteria, at some point the Commission's going to have to 

            9    test whatever criteria are developed against these common- 

           10    sense propositions. 

           11               The agency with the first-line responsibility to 

           12    interpret PURPA has stated Congress did not intend -- and 

           13    this is a direct quote from the Federal Energy Regulatory 

           14    Commission's review of this Commission's BRPU decision -- 

           15    the FERC has stated:  Congress did not intend QFs to have 

           16    any rate benefit above a market-rate level. 

           17               In such circumstances, if this Commission, at the 

           18    end of the day, at the end of the second phase, finds that 

           19    the PX isn't working even though generators are currently 

           20    being paid the PX price, the California consumers are paying 

           21    the PX price, someone's going to have lots of explaining to 

           22    do.  It just flies in the face of common sense. 

           23               Also, there are proposals here that would take 

           24    the PX price and then put some adders onto that price.  That 

           25    will not pass federal muster; and I think this Commission is 

           26    obliged -- because we are implementing here a federal 

           27    statute -- to look to federal statute, to the implementing 

           28    regulations, and the decisions of the FERC for guidance. 
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            1               And if QFs are being paid amounts in excess of 

            2    the PX price, I think that -- that flunks.  And even though 

            3    the FERC has had a hands-off attitude towards the states -- 

            4    it's given them a lot of leeway -- I think this is something 

            5    that they would want to look at. 

            6               Your Honor, rather than reserving the rest of my 

            7    time, may I put it up for auction? 

            8                (Laughter)

            9           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Yeah, I'll take the first 

           10    minute. 

           11               How is what you said different from what PG&E 

           12    said? 

           13           MR. BARNES:  Your Honor, I don't think --

           14           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Other than the words used. 

           15               Excuse me.  I don't mean --

           16           MR. BARNES:  I think it's consistent. 

           17               I think, taken in total, Ms. Reid's presentation 

           18    demonstrates that this is, big picture, rather a simple 

           19    proceeding. 

           20           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Okay.  Please, everybody here 

           21    understand, I may periodically ask the question:  Am I 

           22    missing some important, substantial difference between two 

           23    positions. 

           24               It's not because one's right or the other's 

           25    wrong, I'm just trying to understand.  That's the reason for 

           26    my question to you; and you've responded to me.  Thank you. 

           27           MR. BARNES:  (Nodding head)

           28           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  The rest of his time is up for 
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            1    sale. 

            2                (Laughter)

            3           MR. KARP:  I bid a nickel. 

            4                (Laughter)

            5           ALJ COOKE:  All right.  I think the next party is 

            6    Edison? 

            7               Mr. Woodruff? 

            8                      ARGUMENT OF MR. WOODRUFF

            9           MR. WOODRUFF:  Good morning, Commissioner Neeper, 

           10    Judge Cooke. 

           11               My name's Jim Woodruff.  I represent Southern 

           12    California Edison Company. 

           13               I want to cover three points this morning. 

           14               The first is that a deal is a deal.  Edison has 

           15    been criticized in this proceeding by some for not adhering 

           16    to the terms of a joint proposal that was submitted to this 

           17    Commission back in 1996 by IEP, CCC, and Edison. 

           18               In fact, the evidence in the hearings is going to 

           19    show that it is the QF interests in this proceeding that are 

           20    attempting to take advantage of changed circumstances to 

           21    reap a windfall at ratepayer benefit -- at ratepayer 

           22    expense. 

           23               The second point concerns the Commission's 

           24    discretion in this matter.  Some argue that the Commission 

           25    has very limited discretion in implementing short-run 

           26    avoided cost of energy. 

           27               We disagree.  We believe that the Commission has 

           28    very broad latitude and in interpreting and implementing 
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            1    Section 390 of the Public Utilities Code.                  ]

            2               Third, whatever the Commission does ultimately 

            3    in these proceedings, it must leave ratepayers indifferent, 

            4    as Mr. Barnes has ably explained. 

            5               And while the Commission's discretion in this 

            6    matter is considerable, it is not unlimited.  It is limited 

            7    by principles of avoided costs set forth in PURPA in FERC's 

            8    implementing regulations. 

            9               Now, Edison does not take lightly the 

           10    characterization that it's not living up to a deal in this 

           11    matter.  Edison is attempting to live up to the terms and 

           12    the intent in the letter of the joint proposal and statute 

           13    which is based on it. 

           14               This is a situation in which there are changed 

           15    circumstances.  In the testimony of John Ballance submitted 

           16    on behalf of Edison, we've described those changed 

           17    circumstances. 

           18               What the parties understood to be the case when 

           19    they submitted the joint proposal, what the Legislature -- 

           20    Legislature understood to be the case when it enacted 

           21    Section 390 proved not to be the case when market protocols 

           22    were implemented. 

           23               What I'd like to do is spend a few minutes 

           24    discussing the joint proposal, what it means, how it relates 

           25    to the statute, and how it can be used to interpret the 

           26    statute by this Commission.

           27               In the joint proposal, the parties set forth 

           28    principles for implementing a transition pricing methodology 

                       PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

                                  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA

                                                                        11

            1    which was adopted by this Commission.  They also set forth 

            2    principles for implementing a short-run avoided cost of 

            3    energy to be paid to QFs have after the market was up and 

            4    running. 

            5               They proposed that the market clearing price was 

            6    going to be the all-in price for energy and capacity, and 

            7    this is why in the joint proposal you see that SO-1s and 

            8    SO-3s were only going to receive the market clearing price.  

            9    The as-available capacity payments were going to be 

           10    discontinued.

           11               Parties also agreed that SO-2 and SO-4 qualifying 

           12    facilities would continue to receive their firm fixed 

           13    capacity payments under their contracts.  These two 

           14    principles, though, led the parties to a third principle, 

           15    that you have to remove the capacity value, if any, in the 

           16    market clearing price in order to ensure that qualifying 

           17    facilities receiving firm capacity payments don't receive a 

           18    double payment for capacity. 

           19               Now, this approach is consistent with PURPA and 

           20    FERC's implementing regulations because it eliminates any 

           21    double capacity value in the clearing price or double 

           22    payment for capacity, and it ensures that the avoided cost 

           23    of capacity and energy will never exceed the purchasing 

           24    utility's total avoided cost. 

           25               Now, I think it bears note that the deal struck 

           26    or the principles proposed to this Commission in 1996 

           27    were very favorable for some QFs and ensured that firm 

           28    capacity price would be paid, and all or some portion of 

                       PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

                                  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA

                                                                        12

            1    market clearing price would be paid to SO-2 and SO-4 

            2    qualifying facilities. 

            3               All other generators bidding into the market have 

            4    to recover their total cost from the market clearing price. 

            5               So it was a pretty good deal for some QFs  

            6    even without changed circumstances which are described 

            7    in our testimony. 

            8               The joint proposal as it pertains to this 

            9    proceeding basically stands for three principles.  The first 

           10    one is very important and bears emphasis.  The parties 

           11    understood -- and the statute based upon the joint proposal 

           12    stands for -- that the total payment for energy to a QF 

           13    cannot exceed the market clearing price.  It's an all-in 

           14    price. 

           15               The joint proposal also stands for the 

           16    proposition that the market clearing price may at times 

           17    contain a nonenergy value. 

           18               And, finally, it shows the parties' understanding 

           19    that any adjustment to the market clearing price was going 

           20    to be a downward adjustment to comply with PURPA.

           21               Now, I've submitted an exhibit to Judge Cooke 

           22    this morning which is intended to comply with her request 

           23    that the parties submit a graphic presentation of how the 

           24    parties' proposed methodologies relate to the market 

           25    clearing price. 

           26               We've gone a little bit farther because I think 

           27    Judge Cooke also expressed an interest in a comparative 

           28    analysis that would show how the different methodologies 
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            1    relate to one another. 

            2               And what I'd like to show on the first page of 

            3    this exhibit is an annual depiction of the relationship 

            4    of --

            5           ALJ COOKE:  Just a moment, Mr. Woodruff.

            6               We'll be off the record. 

            7               (Off the record)

            8           ALJ COOKE:  We'll be back on the record.

            9               While we were off the record, Mr. Woodruff 

           10    distributed a document that has a one-paged cover page 

           11    dated April 3rd, Re Exhibits of Southern California Edison 

           12    Company. 

           13               We are marking this for identification as 

           14    Exhibit 57. 

           15    

                            (Exhibit No. 57 was marked for 

           16               identification.)

           17           ALJ COOKE:  You may proceed, Mr. Woodruff. 

           18           MR. WOODRUFF:  Yes. 

           19               The exhibit which we've submitted shows the 

           20    pricing methodologies of various parties compared to the 

           21    market clearing price for the period December '98 through 

           22    November 1999. 

           23               The reason I introduce or show you this exhibit 

           24    at this point is that it graphically demonstrates that many 

           25    of the methodologies proposed when you run the clearing 

           26    price through those methodologies result in a substantial 

           27    increase in the market clearing price. 

           28               The first page of this exhibit shows the IEP QF 
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            1    in/out methodology compared to the market clearing price.  

            2    The adder is so dramatic that the rest of the methodologies 

            3    are only shown in an envelope on Exhibit 1 or on the first 

            4    page of this exhibit. 

            5               If you turn to the second page of the exhibit, 

            6    you see the rest of the methodologies proposed by 

            7    the parties.  The SP 15 congested day ahead price is shown 

            8    by the blue line.  And as you can see again -- I'm sorry -- 

            9    not by the blue line but the read dots -- and as you can 

           10    see, again, a number of the methodologies result in an adder 

           11    to the PX clearing price. 

           12               This is not something that was contemplated 

           13    by the parties to the joint proposal, and it is not 

           14    something that is contemplated by Section 390 of the Public 

           15    Utilities Code. 

           16               Indeed any proposal which results in an adder to 

           17    the PX clearing price should simply be off the table. 

           18               Market clearing price is a ceiling on a the 

           19    short-run avoided cost of energy.

           20               Now, the joint proposal served as a basis for 

           21    Section 390 of the Public Utilities Code, but not all of the 

           22    joint proposal got into the statute.  For example, the 

           23    Edison/IEP/CCC joint proposal provided that parties would be 

           24    on the transition formula for 11 months unless a regulatory 

           25    agency concluded that the market was not functioning 

           26    properly. 

           27               As the Commission knows, the statute says exactly 

           28    the opposite, that there has to be an affirmative 
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            1    determination of functioning properly before the shift to 

            2    short run avoided costs based on the market clearing price 

            3    can occur. 

            4               There was also a provision in the joint proposal 

            5    concerning self selection or having QFs bid directly into 

            6    the market.  That's something else that didn't find its way 

            7    into the statute. 

            8               So what can you make of this joint proposal?  

            9    Well, a number of parties have said that it sets forth the 

           10    principles that govern this proceeding. 

           11               While the joint proposal is something that was 

           12    submitted to the Commission for approval, it was never 

           13    approved by the Commission.  It was superseded by events. 

           14               This proceeding is about implementing 

           15    Section 390, not the joint proposal. 

           16               The joint proposal is useful as legislative 

           17    intent.  CCC and Watson, for example, have said that the 

           18    Commission should look to the joint proposal as a means of 

           19    determining legislative intent. 

           20               And this brings me to the second point which is 

           21    the Commission's discretion in this matter.  Some in this 

           22    proceeding argue that Commission has virtually no 

           23    discretion.  They would argue that the Commission's been 

           24    painted into a little box, and inside the box is a lever 

           25    labeled 390(d), and that the only discretion you have is to 

           26    pull that lever, yield a value, apply it to the short run 

           27    avoided -- to the market clearing price to get an SRAC.

           28               We don't agree with that analysis.  We think 
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            1    Section 390 gives you considerable latitude in implementing 

            2    the short run avoided cost of energy based on the market 

            3    clearing price.

            4               Now, one thing that the parties can all agree on 

            5    is that if you apply Section 390(d) as written over all of 

            6    the hours of operation of market to date, it will yield a 

            7    capacity value of zero. 

            8               What the parties disagree about is what 

            9    conclusions you should draw from that phenomenon.  Some say 

           10    you just mechanistically apply Section 390(d), don't look to 

           11    the external circumstances, don't look to anything beyond 

           12    the literal terms of the statute.

           13               We think that it can be shown that Section 390(d) 

           14    is not plain and unambiguous on its face.  If that is true, 

           15    the Commission can look to the joint proposal to ascertain 

           16    what the legislative intent was. 

           17               390(d) implemented parts of the joint proposal 

           18    but not all of the parts of the joint proposal.  What the 

           19    parties said in the last sentence of the joint proposal 

           20    regarding Section 390(d) or the capacity subtracter 

           21    methodology was that procedures necessary to implement this 

           22    methodology will need to be developed and worked in concert 

           23    with the Power Exchange protocols that are being developed.

           24               Mr. Ballance has testified that market protocols 

           25    being developed in 1996, ones that were under consideration 

           26    at the time that the legislation was passed, were changed 

           27    substantially. 

           28               No party disagrees with the sequence of these 
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            1    events.  No party disagrees with Mr. Balance's testimony 

            2    concerning how the market protocols change. 

            3               Now Mr. Ballance has suggested that the market 

            4    protocols originally contemplated by the parties would have 

            5    resulted in bidders into the market, generators bidding 

            6    their heat rate curve such that the supply price curve would 

            7    represent the variable operating cost of the suppliers. 

            8               Market protocols developed, the testimony shows, 

            9    encourage bidders into the market to bid their full fixed 

           10    and variable costs into the market. 

           11               The circumstances changed.  And as Dr. Stern has 

           12    testified, because those circumstances have changed, there 

           13    is capacity value in the market clearing price. 

           14               Now, this is something that, obviously, ought to 

           15    be a subject of cross-examination in this proceeding.  The 

           16    parties clearly disagree over whether, in fact, there was a 

           17    capacity value on the market clearing price notwithstanding 

           18    what the value is as yielded by Section 390(d), but we think 

           19    you have considerable discretion under this statute to make 

           20    those decisions. 

           21               The discretion comes not only from Section 390(d) 

           22    itself, but also from Section 390(c).  One of the 

           23    differences between the joint proposal and the statute that 

           24    was ultimately implemented is that the statute uses the 

           25    words "based on" when it talks about the market clearing 

           26    price. 

           27               The joint proposal said that the market clearing 

           28    price would be the short-run avoided cost of energy; 390(c) 
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            1    says that it's based on the short-run avoided cost of 

            2    energy.

            3               Now, Mr. Alcantar says in his motion to strike 

            4    that this should be the basis upon which you strike the 

            5    entire cases of Edison and ORA.  We believe that the words 

            6    "based on" should not be so narrowly interpreted.  In fact, 

            7    they give you the very discretion which allows you to 

            8    implement the Legislature's intent.

            9               Finally, we don't think that the Commission -- 

           10    that the Legislature intended to limit the Commission's 

           11    discretion in this proceeding.  The Commission is the 

           12    governmental body which for 20 years has implemented 

           13    short-run avoided cost methodologies in this state. 

           14               We don't believe that the Legislature intended to 

           15    take that discretion away in Section 390. 

           16               The final point that I wanted to discuss is 

           17    ratepayer indifference.  However you exercise the 

           18    considerable discretion that you have in this matter, 

           19    ratepayers must be left indifferent by the result. 

           20               If there is capacity value in the market clearing 

           21    price -- something that should be explored in these 

           22    proceedings -- if there is capacity value in the clearing 

           23    price, and Section 390(d) does not extract that capacity 

           24    value, ratepayers will not be left indifferent. 

           25               All the proposals that you have before you, only 

           26    those made by Edison and the Office of Ratepayer Advocates 

           27    propose a meaningful subtracter to the market clearing 

           28    price. 
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            1               If there is capacity value in the market clearing 

            2    price, those are the only two proposals that give you the 

            3    means to leave ratepayers indifferent.

            4               Thank you.

            5           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Woodruff.

            6               Just for reference, you have six minutes left.

            7           MR. WOODRUFF:  Thank you.                  ]

            8           ALJ COOKE:  Mr. Ramos?  

            9                        ARGUMENT OF MR. RAMOS

           10           MR. RAMOS:  Thank you, your Honor.

           11               Well, ORA's principal concern in this proceeding 

           12    is the construction of 390(d) and whether it basically 

           13    entails the exclusive ability for the Commission to 

           14    basically determine the capacity value. 

           15               It's ORA's position that it's not the only and 

           16    exclusive means by which the Commission may determine 

           17    capacity. 

           18               The formula assumes that there is no capacity 

           19    value in the PX clearing price except when people want 

           20    to use more electricity than is actually available through 

           21    the PX. 

           22               Essentially, the only time there is capacity 

           23    value in the PX price is when there's an outage:  somebody's 

           24    lights go out. 

           25               The question then becomes:  Did the Legislature 

           26    confine the CPUC to a single, exclusive means of 

           27    implementing Section 390(d)? given that the market was an 

           28    assumed market at the time it was formulated, a hypothetical 
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            1    market at the time that, according to Southern California 

            2    Edison, the joint proposal was established between it and 

            3    other parties. 

            4               And that brings a question of legislative intent. 

            5               Legislative intent, of course, governs this 

            6    process.  It must. 

            7               The California Public Utilities Commission must 

            8    defer to the legislative authority of the Assembly and the 

            9    Senate, and, in doing so, it must construct the statute 

           10    according to legislative intent. 

           11               Well, what do we mean by "legislative intent"? 

           12               The Committee reports do not provide us much 

           13    guidance as to what Section 390(d) means; but we have a 

           14    rulemaking authority to basically stopgap, to provide an 

           15    interim solution if the formula provided by Section 390(d) 

           16    impedes the regulation of the QF contracts and the QFs 

           17    bidding into the PX system. 

           18               Now, the proposals which are out there seem to be 

           19    one that provides an all-or-nothing approach. 

           20               The clearing price, as ORA views it, is something 

           21    that has always been in existence through historical 

           22    factors, the contractual system that is in place now, 

           23    and in the PX pricing mechanism that will be in place and 

           24    currently exists.

           25               ORA contends that there is capacity value 

           26    in the PX price, and the value occurs when demand is high 

           27    but still sufficient to be met with the generation bids into 

           28    the PX. 
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            1               There is capacity value in the PX price any otime 

            2    that the marginal supplier bids more than marginal costs.  

            3               There appears to be no evidence in this 

            4    proceeding that suppliers have bid their marginal costs, 

            5    although there is some testimony that suppliers should do 

            6    so. 

            7               Edison's direct testimony has found that 

            8    suppliers bid a significant markup and that the level of 

            9    that markup over costs is higher in high-demand periods. 

           10               In short, buyers' bids always include capacity 

           11    value and sellers' bids include capacity value when 

           12    availability gets tight, and possibly more often than that. 

           13               The question then becomes when does capacity 

           14    exist, where does it exist, and whether capacity even exists 

           15    at all. 

           16               The 390(d) formula's essential end result is that 

           17    PX market-clearing price will be price paid as a short-run 

           18    avoided energy cost to QFs. 

           19               That exists if we take the express terms of 

           20    Section 390(d) and apply it very, very strictly. 

           21               ORA proposes that Section 390(d), although it 

           22    may be strict on its face, provides the OR- -- provides the 

           23    California Public Utilities Commission with more 

           24    flexibility, because the main principle that Section 390(d) 

           25    intends to convey is essentially one of nondouble payment of 

           26    capacity and one to be in accordance with PURPA. 

           27               Most of the parties which champion a strict 

           28    construction of Section 390 argue that the formula 
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            1    implementation is straightforward. 

            2               ORA has carefully reviewed both the direct and 

            3    the rebuttal testimony on the presence of capacity value 

            4    in the PX price. 

            5               Our first observation is how little testimony 

            6    there actually is. 

            7               This topic is discussed at length in both ORA and 

            8    Edison's direct testimony and virtually no one else's:  IEP, 

            9    CCC, and CAC's testimony provide no evidence or discussion 

           10    in their direct testimony. 

           11               The only evidence put forth that there is not 

           12    a capacity value in the PX price comes from the CCC in 

           13    rebuttal testimony of ORA and Edison. 

           14               It is ORA's position that the PX inextricably 

           15    bundles capacity and energy together so that the separate 

           16    values for each are not identifiable by reference to the 

           17    combined price. 

           18               The question then becomes how is it -- how, then, 

           19    is it possible to determine that there is capacity in 

           20    the PX price? 

           21               The inclusion of capacity value in the PX price 

           22    is consistent with the past, present, and future. 

           23               It is consistent with the Commission's own 

           24    determinations construing PURPA in Decision 82-01-103.  The 

           25    Commission stated, and I quote: 

           26               For short-run marginal costs, the capacity 

           27    represents the costs associated with the possibility of a 

           28    shortage.  End of quote. 
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            1               Under Standard Offer 1, the Commission allocated 

            2    that capacity value to time period with the bulk of that 

            3    value being allocated to the summer peak period. 

            4               That regulatory allocation has been reflected 

            5    in PX prices. 

            6               Most price spikes have occurred during the summer 

            7    peak and during other periods of high demand when there is 

            8    higher possibility of a shortage.  It is consistent with the 

            9    past because capacity has long had value in the wholesale 

           10    marketplace, both in interutility contracts and QF 

           11    contracts. 

           12               Purchasing capacity was necessary and found 

           13    reasonable for it basically prevented outages. 

           14               ORA cannot think of a single agreement that only 

           15    paid a capacity value when there was, in fact, an outage, 

           16    or, in the vernacular, when the lights went out.  Capacity 

           17    value has not disappeared. 

           18               It is ORA's position that the Commission has five 

           19    options, not all of which are mutually exclusive:  

           20               The Commission could report back to the 

           21    Legislature that certain provisions of Section 390 are just 

           22    not workable and seek further legislative clarification. 

           23               The Commission could decide to retain the 

           24    Section 390(b) transition formula for an extended period of 

           25    time and that -- the Section 390 transition formula be made 

           26    applicable to all QFs. 

           27               The Commission could also decide to use a 

           28    Section 390(b) transition formula until such time as an 
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            1    adequate PX-based price is determined. 

            2               The Commission could decide that it has a 

            3    sufficient basis from this -- from the record in this 

            4    proceeding to determine a PX price. 

            5               Alternatively, the Commission could indicate its 

            6    preference for a type of mechanism to determine a PX-based 

            7    price, the criteria by which it would judge that mechanism, 

            8    and direct the parties to file additional testimony to 

            9    develop that type of mechanism. 

           10               Essentially ORA's position is one of legislative 

           11    deference, adherence to the legislative intent, 

           12    nonderogation of Section 390(d), and flexibility for the 

           13    Commission in fashioning rules that will enable 

           14    Section 390(d) to be implemented, at least in the interim, 

           15    according to its purpose as opposed to its express terms. 

           16               The purpose for ORA is one which basically 

           17    enables this Commission not to overpay for capacity, not to 

           18    overpay for QF-based energy, and to provide a mechanism for 

           19    identifying capacity value in the PX clearing price. 

           20               It is our position that the PX clearing price at 

           21    some point in time does, in fact, represent capacity value 

           22    or incorporate capacity value. 

           23               By legislative intent, we've looked at 

           24    legislative history and it provides little guidance.  We've 

           25    looked at Committee reports, and they've -- and they do not 

           26    provide much guidance for Section 390(d). 

           27               We've looked for floor debates, et cetera, and 

           28    those are de minimis. 
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            1               If the only legislative history which is not in 

            2    fact or not in legal terms strictly legislative history is 

            3    the joint proposal, then we must examine the joint proposal 

            4    and look at the joint proposal and look at what the parties 

            5    understood the joint proposal to contain. 

            6               Ultimately, compliance with PURPA and its avoided 

            7    cost principles is the goal of this proceeding. 

            8               ORA feels that the principle of cost recovery and 

            9    that capacity value is a fixed cost and is represented in 

           10    the clearing price as something which must be looked at 

           11    also. 

           12               The issue of whether capacity is a service or 

           13    a good is almost secondary in nature, but if it needs to be 

           14    so, it should be defined as being either one or mixed. 

           15               ORA desires implementation of methods that 

           16    basically extract the capacity value from the PX clearing 

           17    price. 

           18               The methods proposed by ORA include the heat-rate 

           19    cap and the new-market-entrant approach. 

           20               It is ORA's firm belief that both those proposals 

           21    are in no way in derogation or in contravention of 

           22    Section 390(d), and are placed there or proposed there by 

           23    ORA in order to enable the Commission to make an informed 

           24    decision as to what the rules under Section 390 will be. 

           25               Those conclude ORA's remarks. 

           26           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Ramos. 

           27               Let's be off the record.

           28               (Off the record)
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            1           ALJ COOKE:  Let's be on the record.

            2               Ms. Grueneich. 

            3                      ARGUMENT OF MS. GRUENEICH

            4           MS. GRUENEICH:  Thank you.

            5               And I want to apologize that, after my remarks, 

            6    I will be going into the other hearing room because I have 

            7    a second oral argument over there. 

            8           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Otherwise we'll put you in 

            9    jail. 

           10           MS. GRUENEICH:  Yeah, right. 

           11                (Laughter)

           12           MS. GRUENEICH:  Thank you. 

           13               In this case our firm is appearing on behalf of 

           14    FPL Energy who owns about 300 megawatts of wind projects in 

           15    California. 

           16               The focus in this case by FPL is a very narrow 

           17    issue:  What is the appropriate pricing under Section 390 

           18    for so-called intermittent resources such as wind and run- 

           19    of-the-river hydro. 

           20               The defining feature of intermittent resources, 

           21    we believe, for the purposes of this case is that those 

           22    resources do not control when their energy is produced. 

           23               We are seeking, in this case, to ensure that 

           24    whatever pricing the Commission adopts does not penalize 

           25    intermittent resources as compared to current pricing. 

           26               FPL is sponsoring a single witness, Mr. Dean 

           27    Goslin, who is responsible for the business management of 

           28    FPL's wind portfolio, and he will be appearing as a witness 
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            1    on Thursday, April 11th. 

            2               In addition, we have reserved about an hour of 

            3    cross-examination for the three parties that have expressed 

            4    concerns about FPL's proposal:  Those are SDG&E, ORA, and 

            5    Edison.  And the focus of our cross-examination in this case 

            6    will be to clarify ratepayer impacts from the FPL proposal. 

            7               Just turning for a moment to the FPL proposal, 

            8    it's basically a simple proposal, and, that is, for 

            9    intermittent resources, that they would have the option to 

           10    be paid based on a monthly weighted average PX cost; and 

           11    this is in comparison to, for nonintermittent resources, all 

           12    the other proposals before you are that basically you -- one 

           13    would use an hourly PX cost, and that there's a lot of 

           14    debate among the parties, as you've already heard, how that 

           15    hourly PX pricing would be determined. 

           16               FPL's proposal is whatever is the methodology 

           17    that the Commission does ultimately adopt, that, then, for 

           18    intermittent resources, instead of using the hourly average, 

           19    it be a monthly weighted average cost. 

           20               And our main point that we're trying to do is to 

           21    deal with the fact that there already is inherent in PX 

           22    pricing considerable volatility on an hourly pricing basis.  

           23    There's no dispute about that. 

           24               With intermittent resources, unlike other 

           25    resources, they are not able to control their generation, 

           26    and they have an additional volatile factor that is unique 

           27    to the intermittent resources, and that is simply because of 

           28    environmental and meteorological conditions, and when they 
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            1    are able to generate is determined by factors outside of 

            2    their control. 

            3               So when we look at, under Section 390, turning 

            4    over the pricing for these resources to a PX-based price, 

            5    we're dealing with not just the volatility that is inherent 

            6    in these resources but also the volatility that comes from 

            7    the great change in PX hourly pricing; and what we look at, 

            8    multiplying volatile prices by a volatile output, produces 

            9    revenues that are much more volatile than today which, in 

           10    turn, will increase the risk that is perceived by these 

           11    projects, which in turn can have an impact on the financing 

           12    and the risk overall of these projects. 

           13               Our proposal attempts to respond to this 

           14    volatility by using a monthly price where it will be much 

           15    less extreme because it will average out the high peaks and 

           16    the high valleys in such pricing. 

           17               Now, so far in this record we have observed that 

           18    there are three concerns that have been raised about the FPL 

           19    proposal which we will be addressing both in briefing and 

           20    through some of our cross-examination in the hearing. 

           21               The three propos- -- concerns about our proposal 

           22    are: 

           23               First, whether the proposal is consistent with 

           24    AB 1890;

           25               Second, whether it is consistent with PURPA; and

           26               Third, whether there will be any significant 

           27    adverse harm to ratepayers. 

           28               We intend to address all three of these issues. 
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            1               First, with regard to the claim that our proposal 

            2    would violate AB 1890, the concern has been raised that 

            3    AB 1890 does include specific subsidies to renewable 

            4    resources, and this is the account that the Energy 

            5    Commission has been administering. 

            6               There, obviously, is no dispute that those are 

            7    covered in AB 1890. 

            8               The dispute -- and we believe this is a legal one 

            9    that will be addressed in briefs -- is whether implicitly 

           10    that means there cannot be any separate pricing for 

           11    intermittent resources under Section 390. 

           12               Our view is that, under common principles of 

           13    statutory interpretation and the goals of AB 1890, the fact 

           14    that there are renewable subsidies that the Energy 

           15    Commission administers does not preclude our interpretation 

           16    of Section 390. 

           17               The second concern that has been raised, as I 

           18    said, is that our proposal would violate PURPA.  And 

           19    basically our approach to this is that the current QF 

           20    pricing that the Commission has adopted does use average 

           21    monthly utility avoided costs. 

           22               We are also looking at, under our proposal, that 

           23    we are using average monthly avoided costs. 

           24               And so we believe that, just as the Commission -- 

           25    current Commission QF pricing is consistent with PURPA, our 

           26    proposal will likely be consistent with PURPA. 

           27               Again, this is an issue that we will be 

           28    addressing in briefing. 
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            1               The third argument is whether our proposal 

            2    imposes significant or inappropriate ratepayer costs. 

            3               In particular, Edison filed rebuttal testimony 

            4    alleging that FPL's proposal will cost Edison ratepayers 

            5    about $40 million more annually than using hourly PX 

            6    pricing. 

            7               Since then, it is our understanding that, in 

            8    response to FPL discovery and further work, Edison has 

            9    discovered an error in its analysis and will be revising its 

           10    testimony. 

           11               Our work over the weekend is that we have 

           12    concluded that, with revisions that Edison will be filing, 

           13    that the possible magnitude of the costs would be more on 

           14    the order of $5 million.  This is something that we will be 

           15    working with to bring out on the hearing, what actually 

           16    would be any impact. 

           17               We believe that, if there is an impact on this 

           18    order, that it is basically insignificant when looking at 

           19    the order of magnitude of the utility annual procurement 

           20    costs which we understand, for example, for Edison is on the 

           21    order of about $2 billion annually.  And so we're looking at 

           22    that, our costs, if it does occur, would be insignificant. 

           23               We furthermore look at, for renewable resources, 

           24    that they are offering value through their environmental 

           25    characteristics and through the additions they make to 

           26    resource diversity. 

           27               And in the switchover to PX pricing, none of 

           28    these benefits from intermittent resources are included in 
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            1    the PX pricing; and so we believe that there is a value that 

            2    the intermittent resources are offering that is not 

            3    included, it's a value to the ratepayers that the Commission 

            4    can and should take into account when looking at whether our 

            5    proposal is in the ratepayer interests. 

            6               Finally, in looking at, from a pricing viewpoint, 

            7    whether our proposal is in the ratepayer interests, we think 

            8    that an additional factor is whether, in the switchover from 

            9    current pricing to pricing based on the PX, what should be, 

           10    to the extent there would be, an adverse impact on the 

           11    holders of their contracts? 

           12               And we believe that the holders of the 

           13    contracts -- that the Commission will be seeking to avoid 

           14    any material changes in the nature of the contract or the 

           15    revenue streams anticipated under the contract; and that 

           16    certainly we believe it will be unfair to single out 

           17    intermittent resources because of the nature of their 

           18    operations in making this switchover and having an outcome 

           19    or a methodology that could unfairly impede their revenues 

           20    under the contract. 

           21               So, in conclusion, our focus in this proceeding 

           22    will be straightforward, it will be on this single issue; 

           23    and we will be urging that the Commission adopt the FPL 

           24    proposal. 

           25               Thank you. 

           26           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Can I speak? 

           27               Either in your evidence, cross-examination 

           28    argument, or whatever, I believe it would be helpful if you 
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            1    could do the Commissioners and perhaps the Judge a favor and 

            2    get us to understand the business and engineering 

            3    decision -- considerations that decide when you turn the 

            4    switch on and when you turn the switch off. 

            5               You said that you do not control.  And I 

            6    understand the sense, having just come back from Kauai in 

            7    heavy tradewinds, that you don't turn the wind off and you 

            8    don't turn the wind on, or the river off and on, but you do 

            9    make business decisions based on phenomena that change.  And 

           10    my impression, for instance, is that river flow is more 

           11    predictable in the sense of more in advance predictable as 

           12    to heavy, light, than wind.  But you're talking to an 

           13    ignorant tourist, if you would, so that five Commissioners, 

           14    and I suspect the Judge may be already expert, but, if not, 

           15    would benefit from an understanding of the considerations 

           16    that enter into when you turn it on, when you turn it off. 

           17           MS. GRUENEICH:  Thank you, Commissioner. 

           18           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Thank you. 

           19           MS. GRUENEICH:  I certainly won't try and speak 

           20    today. 

           21           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  No, no, no. 

           22               All I want, by the end of the record something in 

           23    that permit five Commissioners to better understand the 

           24    underlying concern or considerations to your proposal so as 

           25    to fairly consider your proposal.

           26           MS. GRUENEICH:  Okay.  Thank you. 

           27           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Ms. Grueneich.

           28               Let's be off the record.
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            1               (Off the record)

            2           ALJ COOKE:  Let's be on the record.

            3               We're going to change order and have Ms. Myers 

            4    from Enron Wind go next. 

            5               Ms. Myers. 

            6                        ARGUMENT OF MS. MYERS

            7           MS. MYERS:  Thank you. 

            8               My name is Sara Myers.  I'm representing Enron 

            9    Wind Corp. here today. 

           10               We did not sponsor separate testimony but we have 

           11    always been very actively involved in the law and policy 

           12    affecting restructuring and, in particular, in the wind and 

           13    green market for electricity, so we very much appreciate the 

           14    opportunity to participate in this oral argument, and hope 

           15    to participate on a very limited basis in cross-examination 

           16    and, ultimately, to file a brief. 

           17               Enron Wind specifically supports the testimony 

           18    offered by the Independent Energy Producers and FPL Energy, 

           19    LLC, to which Ms. Grueneich just addressed her comments. 

           20               Actually, Enron Wind agrees with the view that 

           21    Commissioner Neeper and ALJ Cooke have expressed about this 

           22    Rulemaking presenting few, if any, disputed issues of 

           23    material fact. 

           24               But there are critical material facts regarding 

           25    the present market which we believe are largely undisputed 

           26    but they relate to that market, the ratemaking that is 

           27    currently in place today, and appropriate pricing 

           28    mechanisms, all of which have influenced the opinions you'll 
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            1    hear expressed in this testimony and must be taken into 

            2    account in weighing the merits of each of the opinions 

            3    offered. 

            4               There's also patently clear legislative and 

            5    Commission mandates and policy that guide the opinions 

            6    offered, and yet you've heard already of a fairly widely 

            7    divergent view that has been reached regarding the 

            8    application of Section 390. 

            9               Why? 

           10               After reading over all of the testimony 

           11    presented, it appears to me that at least two parties have 

           12    presented testimony that ignores the Section 390 mandate and 

           13    Commission precedent and seek to have the Commission rewrite 

           14    that statute here. 

           15               We think this is inappropriate. 

           16               We also are surprised, at least in one party's 

           17    case, given the MOU, that underlying --

           18           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Excuse me for interrupting. 

           19           MS. MYERS:  Yes. 

           20           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  You said two parties. 

           21               I --

           22           MS. MYERS:  I'm sorry.  I'm thinking of ORA and 

           23    Edison. 

           24               My apologies.  I thought it might be evident from 

           25    the early go around, but I wasn't here for all of it either.

           26           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Thank you. 

           27           MS. MYERS:  This proceeding is neither the time nor 

           28    place or even forum to even address changes to that law.
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            1               The statute itself defines both the facts and law 

            2    that are critical to deciding this issue in this phase of 

            3    the proceeding. 

            4               First, I just wish to say that the statute is not 

            5    an abstract direction about market pricing.  It is focused 

            6    on a specific task:  The pricing of short-run avoided cost 

            7    energy payments by public utilities to QFs selling 

            8    electricity to the utilities under existing contracts based 

            9    on offers and principles approved by this Commission. 

           10               It therefore does matter factually, materially 

           11    how that QF power is presently bid by the utilities into 

           12    that market; the regulatory and utility constraints placed 

           13    on such supply; and external utility cost recovery and 

           14    ratemaking that will continue to influence utility actions 

           15    at least through the transition period. 

           16               And I'm speaking of the transition period that we 

           17    largely identify as through the beginning of 2002. 

           18               These circumstances still largely make the market 

           19    an assumed or hypothetical one, if I can borrow the words 

           20    from ORA; and I think that it's important to recognize this 

           21    as criteria set to determine whether or not that market is 

           22    functioning properly. 

           23               Second, the ground rules for any change in the 

           24    short-run avoided cost energy payments to QFs is established 

           25    by the precise wording of Section 390. 

           26               I don't think it benefits the Commission or any 

           27    party here to go on a search for the Holy Grail of 

           28    legislative intent.  The statute is actually largely clear 
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            1    on its face. 

            2               First, no QF can be mandated to switch to a 

            3    short-run avoided cost energy payment based on the 

            4    Power Exchange clearing price until the Commission first 

            5    determines that the independent Power Exchange is 

            6    functioning properly for purposes of determining the 

            7    short-run avoided cost energy payments to be made to QFs. 

            8               Under Section 390, that required Commission 

            9    determination is not -- has not been made to depend on 

           10    whether the independent Power Exchange is functioning 

           11    properly for the utilities but it's, rather, whether that is 

           12    functioning properly for QFs and all other market 

           13    participants or whether it is providing competitive or 

           14    constrained price signals. 

           15               You will hear from the testimony of IEP that, at 

           16    present, this market is made up of few participants, with 

           17    the investor-owned utilities providing 86 percent of the 

           18    supply and 90 percent of the demand, and serving as the 

           19    dominant market players. 

           20               The present regulatory paradigm existing through 

           21    this transition period permits IOU's to recover costs 

           22    outside the market and bid 94 percent of its supply at a 

           23    zero price. 

           24               This circumstance results in a very small 

           25    percentage of the supply bid establishing the market price 

           26    and results in a market on the demand side that is 

           27    insensitive to price. 

           28               Such facts demonstrate, as most parties agree 
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            1    here, that the independent PX cannot be said to be 

            2    functioning properly now or until circumstances change 

            3    markedly. 

            4               The PX-based short-run avoided energy cost that's 

            5    to be determined and applied once the Commission decides the 

            6    PX is functioning properly and for a mandated switch to 

            7    occur to such pricing, and for voluntary switches today, 

            8    must be made in reference to the facts and law affecting QF 

            9    purchases by the utilities. 

           10               The methodologies offered by both IEP and FPL 

           11    Energy achieve this goal and are not mutually exclusive.

           12               Both offer pricing methodologies that are in fact 

           13    PX based, account for QF power being supplied by utilities 

           14    into the market at zero price, and in the case of FPL 

           15    Energy, recognize the still-existing law and policy 

           16    mandating that environmental and diversity costs and 

           17    benefits are to be accounted for in utility energy 

           18    procurement. 

           19               Section 390 specifically does not repeal existing 

           20    statute and Commission precedent recognizing differences in 

           21    various generation technologies in terms of developing 

           22    cost -- avoided cost methodologies, and nothing in 

           23    Section 390 prevents PX-based SRAC pricing options being 

           24    offered to QFs, depending on technology type, faced with a 

           25    mandated switch. 

           26               Such an approach has been used by the Commission 

           27    in developing avoided-cost principles, specifically to 

           28    account for QF operational differs and environmental 

                       PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

                                  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA

                                                                        38

            1    benefits and is still mandated by statute.                 ]

            2               A source of apparent confusion for some parties 

            3    to this proceeding is also the language of Section 390(d).  

            4    At least two parties -- and, again, I'm referring to ORA 

            5    and Edison -- have tried to rewrite this section, but its 

            6    requirements could not be clearer. 

            7               The capacity value of any embedded as defined by 

            8    Section 390 in the PX based short-run avoided energy cost 

            9    should be adjusted out of energy payments to QFs with firm 

           10    capacity contracts, forecast available capacity contracts, 

           11    or forecast as-delivered capacity contracts.  We agree with 

           12    this. 

           13               Section 390, however, has specifically defined 

           14    what that value is, and that value is described -- and I 

           15    know you're probably going to hear this more than you ever 

           16    wanted to -- but the value of capacity in the clearing 

           17    price, if any, is to equal the difference between the market 

           18    clearing customer demand bid at the level of generation 

           19    dispatched by the independent Power Exchange and the highest 

           20    supplier bid dispatch.

           21               Regardless of whether this equation results in 

           22    zero capacity value in the PX price today does not mean that 

           23    the Commission can rewrite this legislation or alter its own 

           24    long-standing interpretation of QF capacity payments.

           25               Finally, throughout the utility testimony, there 

           26    appears to be an attempt to have the Commission go further 

           27    than the Legislature intended in Section 390 to rewrite 

           28    QF contracts and in particular capacity payments terms.  
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            1    I would just refer to Section 390(e) of that statute and 

            2    the Commission's long-standing policy to uphold the sanctity 

            3    of QF contracts as the basis for providing an instant 

            4    resolution of that issue. 

            5               That is not the intent of Section 390, and that's 

            6    not the purpose of this proceeding.

            7               The legislative prohibition in Section 390(e) to 

            8    change to the standard offer contracts is wholly consistent 

            9    with Commission decision, and we certainly hope that that 

           10    approach and policy is upheld in this proceeding.

           11               Thank you very much for this opportunity to 

           12    address you.

           13           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  You heard what I asked, though, 

           14    the previous.

           15           MS. MYERS:  Yes.

           16           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  I extend the same invitation to 

           17    you.

           18           MS. MYERS:  All right.  Thank you.

           19           ALJ COOKE:  All right.  That took your whole 

           20    nine minutes. 

           21               With that, we'll take a break, and we'll be back 

           22    at one -- 11:15.

           23               Off the record.  

           24               (Recess taken)

           25           ALJ COOKE:  The Commission will be back on 

           26    the record.

           27               Next up we have Mr. Karp from CCC/Watson.

           28               You have 22 minutes.
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            1           MR. KARP:  Thank you very much.  

            2                        ARGUMENT OF MR. KARP

            3           MR. KARP:  Throughout my opening statement, I'm going 

            4    to refer to a handout that I distributed earlier today.

            5               The Commission has three tasks in this phase of 

            6    the proceeding.  The first is to establish criteria for 

            7    determining whether the PX is functioning properly for 

            8    the purpose of setting SRAC payments to QFs. 

            9               The second task is to establish a method of 

           10    setting SRAC payments based upon the market clearing price 

           11    of the Power Exchange. 

           12               The third task is to consider revisions to the 

           13    as-available payment methodology for qualifying facilities 

           14    and to adopt a revised approach if the Commission sees fit.

           15               With respect to Issue No. 1 -- and I'll refer to 

           16    the first page of my handouts -- there's a general consensus 

           17    among the parties' testimony about the underlying principles 

           18    for determining whether the PX is functioning properly.  And 

           19    I've listed six of these general principles. 

           20               The first is there needs to be an absence of 

           21    market power.  And in the testimony, you see parties agree 

           22    that this is both market power of sellers or generators and 

           23    buyers, the utilities.  If there is undue market power, 

           24    the PX will not be functioning properly.

           25               Second, the parties generally agree that the PX 

           26    must have adequate liquidity.  The PX market clearing price 

           27    must generally reflect the value of energy in the market.

           28               Third, the parties also agree that there must be 
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            1    demand responsiveness present in the PX.  The market 

            2    clearing price must reflect the behavior of both buyers and 

            3    sellers. 

            4               Fourth, pricing needs to be transparent. 

            5               Fifth, there should be adequate monitoring of 

            6    the performance of the market clearing price. 

            7               And, sixth, the proposal of ORA that really 

            8    wasn't addressed in other parties' testimony, but I think 

            9    would be fairly uncontroversial, the transition rules should 

           10    not distort the market clearing price.

           11               Now, while there is general consensus about these 

           12    underlying principles, they're fairly vague and generic, and 

           13    they don't give the Commission much direction for Phase 2. 

           14               There will be a lot of testimony about what does 

           15    it mean to have an absence of market power in Phase 2 if 

           16    this is all we have. 

           17               The CCC has proposed specific criteria that the 

           18    Commission could use to determine whether each of these 

           19    general principles have been met.  And I've listed these 

           20    criteria in generic terms underneath the headings to which 

           21    they apply. 

           22               So, for example, under Market Power, the CCC has 

           23    a proposed a specific criteria based upon concentrations 

           24    measured according to the HHI indices.  These are common 

           25    indices used to determine concentration of market power. 

           26               Also price caps.  It is clear from the parties' 

           27    testimony that the price caps represent an aberration of 

           28    competitive market performance.  If there is undue market 
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            1    power, the price caps will be kept.  If FERC determines that 

            2    the PX is functioning properly, the market -- price caps can 

            3    be lifted.

            4               Market arbitrage.  If buyers or sellers can cause 

            5    the PX market clearing price to deviate from other market 

            6    indices by too much and for too long, something is wrong 

            7    with the PX.  So there should be some kind of measure that 

            8    determines how well the PX price corresponds to other market 

            9    valuation indices.

           10               Now, market arbitrage applies both to market 

           11    power and to liquidity.  In connection with -- were you 

           12    going to say something, Commissioner? 

           13               (No response)

           14           MR. KARP:  I'm sorry. 

           15               In connection with liquidity, Mr. Beach proposes 

           16    a measure tied to what's called the underscheduling problem.  

           17    And this is a phenomenon in which the utilities have, we 

           18    believe, underscheduled the amount of demand in the PX 

           19    in order to shift supply over to the realtime market -- 

           20    values to the realtime market.  And by doing so, you deflate 

           21    the PX price. 

           22               Now, Mr. Beach's testimony has been criticized by 

           23    parties, and Edison has even called it a red herring.  Now, 

           24    call it what you will -- a red herring, a pink elephant -- 

           25    it's not to the point in this proceeding.  This phase of the 

           26    proceeding is to determine the criteria.  It's not to 

           27    determine whether indeed there is an underscheduling 

           28    problem.  It's to say what are the criteria we should use. 
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            1               And there is a -- ORA admits there's a potential 

            2    for underscheduling to occur, and there's an incentive for 

            3    it to occur.  The PX itself has admitted there's 

            4    underscheduling going on in the market. 

            5               Given that there's at least some evidence of 

            6    underscheduling, a criteria for the Commission ought to be 

            7    we should look at market arbitrage and see if this is 

            8    a problem. 

            9               In Phase 2, we'll get to the question of whether 

           10    underscheduling indeed occurs and, if so, if it prevents 

           11    the Commission from determining that the market is 

           12    functioning properly at this stage, just look at it and say 

           13    there should be a criteria dealing with underscheduling 

           14    if it is a problem that indeed occurs.

           15           ALJ COOKE:  Mr. Karp, could you speak a tad more 

           16    slowly?

           17           MR. KARP:  I'll try, but that might get me to 

           18    17 minutes.

           19               (Laughter)

           20           MR. KARP:  Zero Bids.  It is recognized throughout 

           21    the testimony that the presence of a large block of power 

           22    bid in at zero, must-take resources and must-run resources, 

           23    distorts the PX clearing price.  It artificially lowers it. 

           24               If these resources bid in at their costs, the PX 

           25    price at times might be higher than it otherwise is.   So 

           26    Mr. Beach proposes a mechanism which says there must be a 

           27    certain threshold or there should be no more than a certain 

           28    threshold of participants bidding in at zero. 

                       PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

                                  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA

                                                                        44

            1               Again, the Commission could look at this in 

            2    Phase 2 and say we've met the test, not a general statement 

            3    about liquidity, but a specific measure that can be used 

            4    as a criteria.

            5               Lastly, Demand Responsiveness.  Very simply, 

            6    Mr. Beach says there needs to be an end of the rate freeze.  

            7    While there is a rate freeze, the consumers are not -- 

            8    unless they're in the direct access market, which is 

            9    a very small percentage of customers -- there is not 

           10    an adequate reaction to prices. 

           11               If customers' rates are frozen, it doesn't matter 

           12    what the PX price is on a given day, their prices don't 

           13    change.  So there should be an end to the rate freeze before 

           14    the PX is functioning properly.

           15               I'll turn now to Issue No. 2, the SRAC energy 

           16    price.  Essentially, there are three classes of proposals 

           17    put forth by the parties aside from the intermittent 

           18    QF proposals you heard before. 

           19               On the left side of the page, there's the QF-in/ 

           20    QF-out proposal sponsored by IEP, CAC, and the other parties 

           21    that joined with CAC.  This proposal essentially starts with 

           22    the PX bidding price and determines what would the PX 

           23    clearing price look like if the QF block of power wasn't 

           24    there. 

           25               This proposal is clearly based upon the PX price, 

           26    and it's steeped in Public Utilities Commission precedent on 

           27    avoided cost methodology and PURPA. 

           28               On the far right side of the page, the other 

                       PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

                                  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA

                                                                        45

            1    extreme, you have the proposals of ORA and Edison.  And they 

            2    propose to base SRAC upon the costs of a replacement of a 

            3    new unit, a new entrant.  And ORA also has a proposal to 

            4    base SRAC upon a heat rate -- a heat rate cap. 

            5               Now, in their testimony regarding functioning 

            6    properly, both ORA and Edison state that the PX is not 

            7    functioning properly today.  And they say you can fix this, 

            8    however.  You can still go to PX based SRAC, or you can 

            9    still change the current status if you account for the 

           10    problems in the PX market through your SRAC methodology. 

           11               So even though the PX is not functioning 

           12    properly, you can fix it by adjusting the SRAC payment 

           13    methodology.  That's their proposal. 

           14               This is not permitted.  The law does not allow 

           15    this.  The law clearly says the Commission must determine if 

           16    the PX is functioning properly.  If and when it is, the 

           17    Commission basis SRAC upon the PX market clearing price. 

           18               Before that time SRAC is based upon the 

           19    transition formula in Section 390(b).  The Commission does 

           20    not have the discretion to say, well, we'll have some 

           21    interim method that corrects for the problems in the PX 

           22    price and implement that before the PX price is functioning 

           23    properly. 

           24               I'll talk about specific the proposals they have 

           25    in a moment.

           26               In the middle, you have the proposal for SRAC 

           27    that is presented by CCC, and it's the same -- and Watson -- 

           28    and it's the same -- I'll try to slow down -- I'm sorry -- I 
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            1    see you shaking your hands -- it's the same proposal that's 

            2    sponsored by PG&E.

            3               Simply put, you take the day ahead clearing 

            4    price, the zonal clearing price in which the QF is located, 

            5    and you subtract the value of capacity as determined in 

            6    accordance with PU Code Section 390(d).  This proposal 

            7    complies with the statute AB 1890.  It complies with PURPA 

            8    by basing SRAC upon the costs that the utility would incur 

            9    if they didn't buy from QFs.  Essentially they go back to 

           10    the PX to buy the replacement power.  And it's simple.  It 

           11    is transparent, and this is the proposal that should be 

           12    adopted. 

           13               We believe SDG&E has a similar proposal.  In 

           14    their testimony they state that they would use the weighted 

           15    average of the day ahead price, the realtime price, and 

           16    perhaps the day of pricing.  But that's because they were 

           17    addressing concerns that they thought parties might raise 

           18    about picking one PX index.  It might be subject to 

           19    distortion.

           20               Well, no party has raised that concern, so we 

           21    hope that SDG&E will say, well, in the absence of those 

           22    concerns, we'll go with the day ahead clearing price.

           23               Now, on the next page, I talk more generally 

           24    about the specific proposals of Edison and ORA to base SRAC 

           25    upon the costs of the new unit, of a new entrant.  

           26    Essentially what this proposal is is you take the energy 

           27    cost of the new entrant, and you adjust it up and down at 

           28    best based upon changes in PX over time. 
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            1               So the PX serves as kind of like a CPI adjustment 

            2    for the fundamental part, which is the energy cost of the 

            3    new entrant. 

            4               This violates Section 390(c).  It bases the SRAC 

            5    upon the cost of a new unit, not based upon the PX clearing 

            6    price.  As Edison's testimony states, and I quote:  

            7                   The avoided cost of energy should be 

            8               based on the variable operation cost 

            9               of the new market entrant. 

           10               Clearly not in compliance with the statute. 

           11               ORA -- and you have to give them credit for their 

           12    frankness -- in their testimony they say the Commission 

           13    should not implement Section 390(d).  They say 390(d) 

           14    violates PURPA, and the Commission should not implement it. 

           15               Not a direct quote, but pretty close, ORA says 

           16    the Commission should do what the Legislature could not do. 

           17               The Commission does not have this discretion in 

           18    this proceeding.  Unless and until a competent authority 

           19    invalidates the provisions of Section 390(d), the Commission 

           20    must enforce it. 

           21               No Federal Court, FERC, no valid authority has 

           22    declared that 390(d) is invalid.  Therefore, the Commission 

           23    must implement the statute as written.

           24               Even if we get past this problem and you say, 

           25    okay, we have the discretion as some parties assert to 

           26    implement 390 in many different ways.  So you look at the 

           27    SRAC proposal of these parties without reference to 390(c) 

           28    or (d).  Their methodology violates PURPA.  Again, their 
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            1    methodology takes a view at the replacement unit. 

            2               Essentially, what they're proposing is but for 

            3    QFs, a new unit would be built.  And that's what we should 

            4    peg our avoid costs to, the cost of that new unit. 

            5               Well, this, as Mr. Beach says, is a long-run 

            6    marginal cost theory.  In the long run, if the QFs weren't 

            7    here, perhaps a new unit would be built. 

            8               What we're dealing with here are short-run 

            9    avoided costs, SRAC.  In the short run, if a QF power is not 

           10    being supplied, the utility will go to the PX.  That's where 

           11    they'll buy their power.  It's the PX, as the Legislature 

           12    recognizes, that should be the measure for avoided cost 

           13    pricing. 

           14               To use the new unit concept would violate PURPA.

           15               If you get past this problem, you come the third 

           16    major problem with this proposal.  It is administratively 

           17    burdensome and controversial.  It is a step in exactly the 

           18    wrong direction that the Commission should take.

           19               ORA admits there are burdens that would be 

           20    undertaken to develop this methodology.  You'd have to 

           21    determine things that plagued the Commission for years and 

           22    the parties for years such as what are the gas costs of the 

           23    replacement unit?  What are the variable O&M costs of the 

           24    replacement unit?  Which is the replacement unit?

           25               These issues will take -- will undoubtedly be 

           26    controversial, and it's totally opposite to what the 

           27    Legislature intended by basing SRAC upon the clearing price, 

           28    a simple transparent index. 
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            1               Even if we got past that problem, the last issue 

            2    is there's no proposal on the table today that would 

            3    establish this SRAC methodology. 

            4               ORA has illustrative numbers, but they say these 

            5    numbers should not be used.  These are only illustrative. 

            6               So the Commission could not, based upon their 

            7    testimony, come away today with a proposal for setting SRAC.  

            8    You'd have to have a separate phase of the proceeding 

            9    designed to -- where we'd all be litigating these new 

           10    issues.  There's no way this could be done by October 30th 

           11    as the scoping memo would have it done.

           12               Turning to the new unit -- I'm sorry -- to the 

           13    heat rate cap proposal of ORA, this proposal also violates 

           14    Section 390.  And in particular it violates Section 390(d). 

           15               What the heat rate cap proposal says is if you 

           16    look at the heat rate of the least efficient unit in the 

           17    market, and that serves as a cap on the PX price.  Any PX 

           18    price above that, the difference -- the amount above it is 

           19    the value of capacity.  And you subtract that from the PX 

           20    price.

           21               Well, that's not what 390(d) says.  390(d) says 

           22    the value of capacity is -- and I won't try to repeat it, 

           23    it's what it says -- it's not what ORA proposes. 

           24               So the heat rate cap proposal violates 390(d).  

           25    What the heat rate cap proposal says is that avoid cost is 

           26    simply or is no more than tied to the heat rate of the least 

           27    efficient unit. 

           28               As Mr. Beach explains in his testimony, in the 
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            1    Power Exchange, the energy value could be much more or 

            2    substantially more than the heat rate than the least 

            3    efficient unit at any given time.  It all depends upon the 

            4    bidding strategies of individual bidders and how they will 

            5    recover the energy costs. 

            6               This proposal would undervalue energy and not pay 

            7    QFs avoided cost. 

            8               If you get past that problem -- again, this was 

            9    administratively burdensome and controversial in the same 

           10    fashion as the prior proposal -- and, again, there's no 

           11    current proposal in this case -- no current proposal in this 

           12    case.

           13               The only proposal that really makes sense in this 

           14    case is the simplest and the one that clearly complies with 

           15    all relevant authority is the proposal by CCC and PG&E to 

           16    base SRAC upon the clearing price adjusted for the value of 

           17    capacity as set forth in 390(d).

           18               And the third issue, as-available capacity 

           19    payments, you haven't heard a lot today about this, but this 

           20    is actually a very important issue.  The as-available 

           21    capacity payments will set -- will be applied to both SO-1 

           22    and SO-3 QFs who are called as available QFs.  It also will 

           23    apply to SO-2 and ISO-4 QFs who have firm capacity contracts 

           24    to the extent that they sell capacity in excess of the firm 

           25    capacity amount.  That's important for -- I'll get to it in 

           26    a moment.

           27               I view this issue as one that should be 

           28    considered based upon utility -- each utility in specific.  
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            1    And most parties argue that the PX is an all in price.  It 

            2    reflects both energy values and capacity values.  And SDG&E 

            3    specifically states that SO-1 and SO-3 QFs should simply be 

            4    paid the PX clearing price, no more no less. 

            5               For SO-2 and SO-4 QFs, we imagine what they would 

            6    say is take the difference between the energy price and the 

            7    PX price, and the remainder is the value of capacity.  So 

            8    you pay SO-2 and ISO-4 QFs for their as-available capacity 

            9    that difference.

           10               We look at this and we say, well, if a generator 

           11    sells only into the PX then, yes, the PX is all the 

           12    compensation they should expect to get both capacity and 

           13    energy. 

           14               In today's market, the PX is not the only option 

           15    for generators.  Generators can sell into the ISO's 

           16    ancillary services market.  The generators can enter into 

           17    must-run contracts and get value for their power there. 

           18               In today's market, as the Commission predicted in 

           19    95-12-069, as ORA and as Edison both recognize, there are 

           20    values of capacity present in the ancillary services market 

           21    and through must-run contracts. 

           22               So the CCC, when it looks at what is the value of 

           23    capacity avoided by the utilities based upon the presence of 

           24    QFs, we see they will avoid having to purchase ancillary 

           25    services, and they'd avoid having to purchase must-run 

           26    purchases.

           27               So Mr. Beach proposes a simple measure.  If you 

           28    look at the value of the spinning reserves and nonspinning 
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            1    reserves, the utilities would avoid and just weight it 

            2    50-50, half each.

            3               That will be the value of capacity in today's 

            4    market.

            5               Now, it's important to keep in mind that unlike 

            6    SRAC energy payments, which under 390(c) are to be based 

            7    upon the clearing price, there's no such limitation on the 

            8    value of capacity.  390 does not address the value of 

            9    capacity, so we're not restricted to looking at the PX for 

           10    the value of capacity.  We look at the market generally. 

           11               And where is that value in the market?  It's in 

           12    the PX.  It's in the ancillary services market.  It's in  

           13    RMR contracts.

           14               Now, in we'd apply that methodology to SDG&E.  

           15    We'd also apply that methodology to Edison. 

           16               For PG&E, we would not apply this methodology.  

           17    There was a prior agreement with PG&E and with CCC and other 

           18    QFs that dealt with avoided -- that market based SRAC 

           19    payments.  And this agreement also talked about the value of 

           20    as-available capacity.  And we agreed at the time with PG&E 

           21    that the as-available capacity would be limited to the value 

           22    in the PX price, essentially, the value in 390(d).  And PG&E 

           23    honored its agreement, and we intend to honor our agreement 

           24    as well.

           25               So we would propose for PG&E's QFs apply the 

           26    as-available capacity payment only the value present in the 

           27    PX price, the value set forth in 390(d). 

           28               In SDG&E, there was no prior agreement.  We think 
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            1    the Commission is starting from a clean slate and should 

            2    look to the market generally. 

            3               For Edison, there was an agreement.  But Edison 

            4    has not chosen to comply with its agreement.  They say that 

            5    it doesn't apply today.  Fine.  It doesn't apply.  

            6    Therefore, our side of the bargain doesn't apply either. 

            7               And we think the Commission should look fresh and 

            8    say that the value of capacity with respect to the whole 

            9    market and it's 50-50 spinning reserve nonspinning reserve.

           10               Now, that's pretty much the end of my opening 

           11    statement.  I want to caution that a lot of the issues I 

           12    brought up today will not be covered in cross-examination.  

           13    They are legal issues, and they're issues that are evident 

           14    in the testimony itself, direct testimony.  I won't just 

           15    bring out in cross.

           16               So you may not hear this coming out in the rest 

           17    of the hearings, but you'll certainly see it in our briefs.

           18               Thank you very much.

           19           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Karp.

           20               Just so you know, you have four minutes for 

           21    rebuttal, if you want.

           22           MR. KARP:  I slowed down a lot.

           23               (Laughter)

           24           ALJ COOKE:  Mr. Kerner, IEP, you have 22 minutes.

           25                       ARGUMENT OF MR. KERNER

           26           MR. KERNER:  Thank you, your Honor, 

           27    Commissioner Neeper.  Thank you for being here.  I do have a 

           28    visual aid.  I hope for the reporter's sake, I may walk back 
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            1    and forth, and I'll try to speak clearly even though I'm 

            2    behind you.

            3           ALJ COOKE:  Mr. Kerner, do you have a hard copy of 

            4    this exhibit of this so that we can attach it to the 

            5    transcript?

            6           MR. KERNER:  Yeah, I can make that happen.  I can 

            7    tell you, however, that what I've done here is already 

            8    contained in Mr. Branchcomb's testimony.

            9           ALJ COOKE:  Okay.  Perhaps you can give us a 

           10    reference page for that.

           11               Let's be off the record for a minute. 

           12               (Off the record)

           13           ALJ COOKE:  Let's be back on the record.

           14               Mr. Kerner is going to be using a visual aid that 

           15    is the same as page 13 -- on page 13 in Mr. Branchcomb's 

           16    direct testimony which has been previously identified as 

           17    Exhibit 4.

           18           MR. KERNER:  Yes.

           19           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Is it exactly the same?

           20           MR. KERNER:  No, sir.  And I'm going to clarify. 

           21               As I indicated before, the difference between 

           22    this and Mr. Branchcomb's material is that for the 

           23    convenience of my presentation, I've basically combined two 

           24    ideas here.  So this right part of the graph which shows an 

           25    intersection of supply and demand in the normal case is 

           26    added (indicating). 

           27               Mr. Branchcomb's exhibit basically looks like 

           28    that (indicating), all right? 

                       PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

                                  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA

                                                                        55

            1               I'd like to take --

            2           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Might that being --

            3           MR. KERNER:  The right side.

            4           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  -- the two lines which appear, 

            5    if one were to trend it, wouldn't intersect, but on this 

            6    exhibit they are now carried out to the intersections; is 

            7    that correct?

            8           MR. KERNER:  That's correct, but I want to be clear 

            9    that there's no -- I'm depicting two hours in the same graph 

           10    just because I thought it would be easier. 

           11               There's no quantitative relationship between 

           12    these curves in the other one submitted to the Commission.  

           13    It's for illustration. 

           14               I'd like to take my time to talk about what I 

           15    think this case is about and what this case is not about, 

           16    which I think would be useful.

           17               We began this case with a prehearing conference 

           18    where we debated endlessly over how much cross we thought we 

           19    had and how complicated it all seemed to be.  And I quite 

           20    frankly agree with Mr. Barnes that this ought to be a very 

           21    simple case.

           22               What this case is not about, from our 

           23    perspective, is whether the PX price can have a capacity 

           24    component.  The answer is that it can. 

           25               Okay.  This case is not about how in that event 

           26    we should figure that out.  That answer -- issue as far as 

           27    we are concerned is resolved.  The statute which, by the 

           28    way, was written by a consensus of all the utility 
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            1    participants, all of the QFs, in 1890 and submitted jointly 

            2    says very clearly that the value of capacity, if any, 

            3    involves the difference between the market clearing customer 

            4    demand bid at some quantity dispatched (indicating) and the 

            5    highest supply bid which is dispatched. 

            6               Parties also all agreed -- Edison, PG&E, 

            7    San Diego, all the QFs -- that this picture you see right 

            8    here (indicating) which is reproduced in Mr. Branchcomb's 

            9    testimony which is on the record at the PUC in memoranda of 

           10    understanding submitted by all of the parties, that this 

           11    picture accurately describes what that means (indicating). 

           12               You cannot reconcile the position of the ORA in 

           13    this case and Edison (indicating) the view that there is 

           14    capacity in this curve (indicating) which is the supply bids 

           15    with the rule which is that the value of capacity, if there 

           16    is one, is a difference between two things; it's a 

           17    difference between some number up on the demand curve and 

           18    some number down here (indicating). 

           19               The reason I've add this over here (indicating) 

           20    is just to show what you might call situation normal.  This 

           21    is what's going to happen almost all the time.  Almost all 

           22    the time the PX and the other scheduling coordinators are 

           23    going to take their demand, they're going to take their 

           24    supply, and they're going to meet, and they're going to 

           25    submit that, and the schedule is going to balance just fine.

           26               What the statute says -- what we all contemplated 

           27    when we wrote this and what this shows you is that it is 

           28    possible in some hour that you may have a situation where 
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            1    there's demand up here (indicating) at the quantity that's 

            2    available and only that much supply (indicating). 

            3               And in that case, the value of capacity is the 

            4    difference between that number right there (indicating) and 

            5    that number right there (indicating).  It's really very 

            6    simple. 

            7               Now, setting aside the fact that everybody agrees 

            8    with this -- although ORA and Edison don't like it 

            9    anymore -- it's a perfectly rational answer to the problem.  

           10    QFs get pay for capacity based on their contribution to 

           11    avoiding a shortage. 

           12               All of that is documented in Mr. Branchcomb's 

           13    testimony.  There's 15 years of PUC history on that point. 

           14               The value of avoiding a shortage is what we're 

           15    getting paid for in that separate payment.

           16               This shows perfectly why we're adhering to the 

           17    integrity of that view.  In this hour, we have for the 

           18    moment a shortage of capacity.  In this hour, the PX and all 

           19    the scheduling coordinators are going to clear, balance 

           20    their schedules, and this quantity at that price 

           21    (indicating).  And everybody on this curve gets that price 

           22    (indicating) except us under our proposal, under what this 

           23    says (indicating).  Why?  Because we agree we're already 

           24    getting paid that.

           25               Mr. Ramos is concerned that, oh, well, you know, 

           26    this can't be right because the only time you have capacity 

           27    value is when there's a shortage; when the lights go out.

           28               That's nonsense.  What's probably going to happen 
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            1    is that the ISO is going to look at this situation and say, 

            2    uh-oh, and they're going to go out the next day, and they're 

            3    going to buy power to make sure they got that supply.  

            4    That's capacity. 

            5               We don't get paid that.  That's the point.  

            6    That's what this does (indicating), that's what everybody 

            7    agreed to, and that's why it makes sense. 

            8               So that's what this case is not about from our 

            9    perspective. 

           10               What this case is about is how we figure out how 

           11    much of this curve (indicating) -- which curve on this 

           12    supply PX energy price the QF should be paid.  And you have 

           13    three proposals in front of you. 

           14               Under one proposal, you will pay -- this curve 

           15    could represent lots of different markets.  One of them is 

           16    the day ahead by hour.  PG&E/CCC think that's the right 

           17    price.  That is, by the way, the price you've agreed to pay 

           18    on the interim basis for people who switch voluntarily.  

           19    That's one proposal. 

           20               You have another proposal in front of you which 

           21    says, well, there's a day ahead by hour curve, there is a 

           22    day of curve, there's an imbalance market curve.  All these 

           23    different markets in which various people play to meet 

           24    finally demand that you could weight average those. 

           25               And then you have our proposal which is similar 

           26    to but not identical to the CAC proposal that I want to 

           27    explain and clarify because it's been misconstrued.

           28               The IEP proposal recognizes, and it's not 

                       PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

                                  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA

                                                                        59

            1    depicted accurately here -- if you really drew this curve 

            2    the way the market is work right now, Commissioner and your 

            3    Honor (indicating), you would have down here at zero 

            4    (indicating) a very large block of supply consisting not 

            5    entirely but in large part of qualifying facilities 

            6    (indicating).

            7               What happens is the utilities cram those guys 

            8    into those schedules at a, quote, zero price.  The effect of 

            9    that, which is easy to imagine, is that this supply curve 

           10    starts over here (indicating), and then it finally goes up 

           11    here (indicating), shifts way to the right (indicating).  

           12    Price comes down.

           13               This is the primary reason, from IEP's 

           14    perspective, you have a problem in concluding today that 

           15    you've got a properly functioning market.          ]

           16               You have enormous amounts of power being 

           17    introduced into the market at a price which clearly has 

           18    nothing -- is not a dead price, it's got nothing to do with 

           19    cost, it's all at zero. 

           20               To account for that, and only to account for 

           21    that, because if the market were doing what it should be, we 

           22    would absolutely agree that the PX price is the right 

           23    number.  But because you've got this anomaly right now of 

           24    all that zero-price energy, we're saying, look, to make that 

           25    curve come out the way it should, and based on precedent of 

           26    this Commission that says, you know, what we're trying to 

           27    figure out is what you would pay if you didn't have the QFs 

           28    in there, we'd pull them out.  Just like we did in the old 
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            1    ECAC days.  Take those QFs out of the market, and let that 

            2    curve go up to where it would be if they weren't there, and 

            3    you get that adjusted price. 

            4               Okay.  That is what this case is about.  It's 

            5    choosing among those three alternatives, recognizing that 

            6    the in/out alternative is a means of mitigating a market 

            7    dysfunction in the interim. 

            8               Okay. 

            9               That concludes my presentation. 

           10           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Kerner. 

           11               Mr.  Alcantar?  

           12                      ARGUMENT OF MR. ALCANTAR

           13           MR. ALCANTAR:  Thank you, your Honor, 

           14    Commissioner Neeper. 

           15               My name is Michael Alcantar.  I am here on behalf 

           16    of CAC and a number of other QF parties in this case. 

           17               Our involvement in this case is not across the 

           18    board:  

           19               We chose not to address the issues concerning 

           20    the criteria on whether the market is functioning properly;

           21               We chose not to address any more explicitly than 

           22    to acknowledge we had agreed with PG&E about the value to be 

           23    paid to as-avail- -- so-called as-available QFs. 

           24               So if we look at Mr. Karp's chart, 1 and 3, we 

           25    acknowledge No. 3, that's the way it should be, it should be 

           26    the PX price, whatever is determined; and we haven't 

           27    addressed No. 1. 

           28               But our issue is No. 2:  What does the statutory 
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            1    requirement of "based upon the market-clearing price of the 

            2    Power Exchange" mean, and what does capacity in terms of 

            3    what 390 set -- 390(d) says, very explicitly, in this 

            4    statute mean? 

            5               I have unfortunately spent a lot of years doing 

            6    this work, and I spent a lot of hours, midnight and beyond, 

            7    with Senator Peace, with representatives of this Commission, 

            8    with representatives from ORA, with representatives -- none 

            9    of whom are in this room -- from the utilities, and many of 

           10    my QF colleagues --

           11           MR. BARNES:  (Indicating)

           12           MR. ALCANTAR:  -- arguing and determining what the 

           13    parameters of a deal would be.  We heard that term this 

           14    morning; I find it fascinating. 

           15               What was the deal?  Because the deal may, in 

           16    fact, have placed prescriptions that are different than 

           17    an intellectual game today fought among economists about 

           18    whether or not capacity actually is or is not in a 

           19    particularly drawn curve or not. 

           20               It wasn't the deal. 

           21               And I find, today, difficult to listen -- and 

           22    I would imagine, I would hope, that for this Commission, 

           23    it would be difficult to listen -- to a premise being 

           24    supported by its staff and by one of its overseeing 

           25    utilities that, well, the deal was the deal then, but things 

           26    changed and we don't like it anymore; or we're trying to 

           27    implement what we think the intent of the Legislature was 

           28    regardless of what the words say. 
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            1               You heard that this morning. 

            2               The intent is what we're trying to reach even 

            3    though the words may say something different. 

            4               Shocking to me.  Beyond comprehension to me 

            5    about what we are here to do. 

            6               Let me suggest to you that in this case, had this 

            7    case been PG&E's presentation and SDG&E's presentation and 

            8    the balance of the QFs, without the intervening claims about 

            9    something outside the statute, that "based upon" can mean 

           10    based upon a marginal plant that we literally imagined 

           11    the numbers about -- but if this case had been we will 

           12    establish, as the statute says, that, "based upon the 

           13    PX price" means either the day-ahead, means either the hour- 

           14    ahead, or the imbalance, or a weighted average of those, 

           15    or we're going to just settle on the day-ahead, I can assure 

           16    that you CAC and those other parties that have joined us 

           17    would have said:  Fine.  We're done.  We don't need to go 

           18    through this process. 

           19               We shouldn't be here today. 

           20               Why are we here? 

           21               Well, legally, under PURPA, there is no doubt 

           22    as to the definition of avoided costs. 

           23               And I want to distinguish this from what the BRPU 

           24    issue was talking about.  That's really, truly a misleading 

           25    characterization of what FERC was dealing with the in the 

           26    BRPU. 

           27               Avoided cost has been litigated, sustained, and 

           28    it deals with very specific sections out of the CFRs from 
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            1    FERC regulation. 

            2               And when it comes to avoided costs, not only are 

            3    QFs to be paid the full avoided costs and they're supposed 

            4    to get those from the State, as determined by the State, but 

            5    what it says is, very clearly, avoided cost is the cost the 

            6    utilities would have incurred either if they generated the 

            7    power themselves or had to acquire it but for the QFs. 

            8               In other words, the reason why this Commission, 

            9    for 15 years, looked at in/out methodologies is because the 

           10    statute and FERC implementations of the statute on a federal 

           11    level said you have to evaluate what the rate -- what the 

           12    costs of purchasing for the utility would have been without 

           13    the QFs involved, without those QF resources. 

           14               Nothing's changed. 

           15               That statute still exists, Commission precedents 

           16    still exist to an extent to this issue. 

           17               So in this case am I suggesting to you that 

           18    there -- there are two different paths:  One's a litigation 

           19    position and one's an accommodation position?  You bet.  I 

           20    am. 

           21               Should I do that in an oral argument?  Probably 

           22    not. 

           23               But I'm doing it because I think it's important 

           24    to understand the context of this case and why it's here 

           25    before you and why there's a controversy. 

           26               There is a controversy over the methodology of 

           27    basing, first, what does "based upon the PX price" mean; 

           28    and, believe me, I can't tell you how hard it is to imagine 
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            1    hearing folks argue to you today that that doesn't mean what 

            2    it says:  That the PX price isn't the PX price, it's really 

            3    a proxy, it's really a heat rate, it's really something 

            4    else. 

            5               It isn't.  It just isn't. 

            6               I couldn't -- I don't know how to -- how we could 

            7    have written the provisions of 390 any more prescriptively, 

            8    and they were prescriptive. 

            9               And while it may be a sad history for this 

           10    Commission to think back about why AB 1890 in very many 

           11    areas was extraordinarily prescriptive, it was done to try 

           12    and make sure that many of these debates were no longer 

           13    debatable, and yet here we are today, sadly. 

           14               Troublesome. 

           15               Why? 

           16               Because we're debating theories that aren't 

           17    within the statute. 

           18               We're debating methodologies that, by their own 

           19    advocates, are saying, well, we're honoring our deal except 

           20    that things have changed, so therefore we need to kind of 

           21    look at a different deal; or we're -- we weren't really part 

           22    of that deal but we think there is capacity in here all the 

           23    time and we need to be able to address that differently even 

           24    though the statute says something different, because the 

           25    intent must have meant something different.  The Legislature 

           26    just didn't understand or didn't know. 

           27               Well, you know, that -- that's an old saw, that's 

           28    an old lawyer's argument. 
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            1               Unfortunately, the very clear response, 

            2    unequivocal response to that kind of argument is:  If you 

            3    have a problem with what the Legislature does, that belongs 

            4    somewhere else.  It's not in this room. 

            5               I'd like to also let you consider something else: 

            6               Where does it lead if the deal isn't a deal? 

            7               If 390 doesn't mean really "based upon the PX 

            8    price," wasn't really kind of what we meant; we meant it was 

            9    based upon the PX price unless we didn't like the result or 

           10    we thought we could lower the payment, or some other changes 

           11    in the market occurred that we think might affect this in 

           12    some way that maybe the Legislature didn't know about then.

           13               Well, gee whiz.  What about Edison's ICIP? 

           14               What about labor-cost recovery for Edison's 

           15    labors? 

           16               What about full CTC recovery? 

           17               Things have changed there, too, haven't they? 

           18               Maybe we should go back and start looking at 

           19    those things. 

           20               I don't want to do that.  I'm not advocating 

           21    that. 

           22               I think that's the most pernicious type of 

           23    suggestion that you could hear before you and I'm going to 

           24    hear advocating. 

           25               But I am advocating that this stop right here.  

           26    That the deal is a deal.  That what was submitted before 

           27    this Commission, but not only before this Commission, in 

           28    negotiations before the Legislature, spoken out before the 
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            1    Legislature, agreed to and committed to by not just this 

            2    Commission -- representatives of this Commission but also 

            3    staff who were there, virtually every stakeholder in this 

            4    room with the exception of TURN, endorsing and supporting 

            5    these provisions that included 390 as written, as stated, as 

            6    clear, and yet being taken away from us today; and I don't 

            7    know why, except for one fairly transparent or obvious 

            8    reason:  Let's figure out how to make these payments lower.  

            9    Let's figure out how to unravel the deal. 

           10               It was even kind of said today by Edison's 

           11    counsel:  Well, the deal was really good for QFs. 

           12               Well, you know what, the deal was really good for 

           13    Edison.  Really good. 

           14               We can go that way, too. 

           15               But it's not appropriate. 

           16               And it's not part of your jurisdiction. 

           17               And while I -- you know, these are not arguments 

           18    that are comfortable to make before you, it's not part of 

           19    your discretion. 

           20               This isn't a place where we're allowed to play, 

           21    if you will, with legislative intent or the legislative 

           22    language. 

           23               Why was "based upon" in the statute?  Why was it 

           24    written that way? 

           25               Well, at the time there was no PX, we didn't know 

           26    what the pricing figures would be called, we knew there were 

           27    debates about whether or not there might be a post-market 

           28    adjustment rate; there was something about a real-time rate 
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            1    but it wasn't sure when it would be set or what the 

            2    parameters would be, we knew there would be some form of 

            3    day-ahead but that wasn't clear that that that was the right 

            4    price, and maybe there should be some other mixes -- yeah, 

            5    that word got used. 

            6               Is it vague?  Well, it's more open than "it shall 

            7    be the day-ahead price as set by the PX."

            8               But how vague do you want to make it? 

            9               I mean, do you really want to make it so vague 

           10    that it doesn't mean "based upon the PX prices"? 

           11               No.  I don't think so. 

           12               It would be inappropriate to do so. 

           13               There's a motion to strike in this case which I 

           14    guess we're going to argue afterwards, but I think this is 

           15    an important part of the integrity of this process and what 

           16    we are doing here. 

           17               This case, in terms of the price to be paid to 

           18    QFs, is simply -- it is a very simple concept:  It's to be 

           19    based upon the PX price. 

           20               The representative from PG&E this morning spoke 

           21    it simply and elegantly and appropriately.  We don't 

           22    disagree with that concept, with the footnote that we still 

           23    have to deal with a federal statute that does say but for QF 

           24    resources, you have to determine price.  That's why our 

           25    testimony includes that. 

           26               But am I suggesting to you today that there is 

           27    a resolution that could be at hand in this case and should 

           28    be at hand in this case?  Get away from me.  Yes. 
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            1               And I'd like to see, through your efforts with 

            2    respect to properly defining the scope of this case to allow 

            3    facilitation of that to occur. 

            4               It will not occur so long as Edison and ORA in 

            5    this case are allowed to torture statutory language, to take 

            6    it to a place it doesn't belong and to cause the type of 

            7    suggested discounting that would occur outside and way 

            8    beyond the parameters of "the deal." 

            9               Let me try and conclude with just a couple small 

           10    things. 

           11               Edison today handed out a chart, Exhibit 57. 

           12               I'm fascinated by this document. 

           13               We have called, we have tried, we have solicited 

           14    the PX to try and gain data that would allow us to plot for 

           15    you the prices that may be found by a QF in/out methodology.  

           16    We're told it's not available, it can't be done, or the 

           17    historical data is not readily available.  Several scores of 

           18    thousands of dollars to get it. 

           19               If Edison has that data, then we want it.  We 

           20    want to evaluate it, because, frankly, their own testimony 

           21    talks about their methodology discounting the payment from 

           22    the PX of about 30 percent -- 29 percent in some cases.  

           23    That's a hell of a discount.  Dramatic. 

           24               And from our thinking -- we're not sure, but our 

           25    thinking is that, with the PX -- with the QF in/out 

           26    methodology that CAC is proposing, it's -- it's nowhere near 

           27    reciprocal.  It's nowhere near 30 percent high as far as we 

           28    know. 
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            1               But, again, I have no basis for doing that. 

            2               But here's an exhibit (indicating) showing a 

            3    picture. 

            4               I have no idea where this is from, and I ask you 

            5    today to aid us in ordering that the workpapers -- which are 

            6    typically provided with something like this -- are in fact 

            7    provided.  There's nothing here. 

            8               What was FERC dealing with in terms of the BRPU? 

            9               It was dealing with the determination of capacity 

           10    payments for contracts to be let; it was not dealing with 

           11    the avoided-cost principles, it was not dealing with 

           12    avoided-cost methodologies.  It was dealing with capacity 

           13    payments to elicit the development of capacity -- 

           14    distinguishable, undeniable. 

           15               But, again, that's not what this case should be 

           16    about. 

           17               I appreciate the opportunity to address you 

           18    today. 

           19               I hope can you focus very clearly on what 

           20    I think, painfully at times, talks about a nondiscretionary 

           21    area:  This was a well-defined limitation on the 

           22    Commission's grant of authority in order to stop what had 

           23    been going on for ten years of debates. 

           24               We have had ECACs that were horrendous, three and 

           25    four and five months long.  It took up Commission resources 

           26    to make them to away. 

           27               We tried to come up with a methodology through 

           28    settlement that dealt with transparency, a clear price, 
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            1    simplicity, taking away from administrative determination.  

            2    We did that, until today.  We've come now to a place which 

            3    tries to re-interpret those provisions and make them 

            4    noneffective. 

            5               Thank you. 

            6           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Alcantar. 

            7               Let's be off the record.

            8               (Off the record)

            9           ALJ COOKE:  Let's be back on the record.

           10               We'll take a lunch break and reconvene at 1:30.

           11               Off the record.    

                            (Whereupon, at the hour of 11:59 p.m., 

           12         a recess was taken until 1:30 p.m.)

           13                           *  *  *  *  * 
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            1                     AFTERNOON SESSION - 1:30 PM

            2                            *  *  *  *  *

            3           ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE COOKE:  The Commission will 

            4                            be in order. 

            5                We're going to resume with APX and followed by 

            6                CalPX, and you each have 15 minutes. 

            7                                  Mr. Crossen?

            8                       ARGUMENT OF MR. CROSSEN

            9            MR. CROSSEN:  Thank you.

           10               Good afternoon, your Honor, Mr. Neeper. 

           11               My name is Jim Crossen, and I'm here as the 

           12    attorney representing Automated Power Exchange in this 

           13    proceeding. 

           14               I'll begin by briefly describing Automated Power 

           15    Exchange business, which will help define the basis of our 

           16    interests in this proceeding. 

           17               Automated Power Exchange provides e-commerce 

           18    solutions to power markets.  We develop and operate power 

           19    exchanges that trade energy, ancillary services, and 

           20    transmission rights. 

           21               APX also provides grid-management services as 

           22    a contractor to various independent market operators:  ISAs, 

           23    ISOs. 

           24               An important element of the set of APX Power 

           25    market services that we provide is an APX market for green 

           26    tickets. 

           27               This market of green tickets allows generators 

           28    and loads to value the green attribute of power separately 
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            1    and independently. 

            2               APX's green-ticket markets gives it a unique 

            3    perspective in this proceeding which concerns the evaluation 

            4    of the standard for compensation for nonutility power 

            5    generators. 

            6               APX understands that in this proceeding the 

            7    Commission is considering the issues regarding 

            8    implementation of Section 390 of the Public Utilities Code. 

            9               Specifically, APX understands that the issue 

           10    before the Commission is the determination of whether the 

           11    California Power Exchange Commission -- excuse me -- 

           12    California Power Exchange functions properly, for the 

           13    purpose of determining the short-run avoided-cost payments 

           14    to nonutility power generators. 

           15               APX is presenting testimony -- and it's going 

           16    through distribution right now -- having previously been 

           17    provided to ALJ Cooke -- APX is presenting testimony which 

           18    contends that the Commission can determine if the power -- 

           19    California Power Exchange is functioning properly only if 

           20    the California Power Exchange no longer operates under a 

           21    mandate that the utilities trade exclusively with it. 

           22               APX contends that the presence of the mandate 

           23    alone does not allow the development of a competitive market 

           24    in trading services. 

           25               The presence of a competitive market in trading 

           26    services would mean that prices in the California 

           27    Power Exchange will reflect the prices in the broader 

           28    trading market. 
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            1               If the prices in the California Power Exchange 

            2    reflect the prices in the broader market, then the 

            3    California Power Exchange is functioning properly, which is 

            4    the issue before the Commission in this proceeding. 

            5               In this proceeding APX does not present testimony 

            6    about which specific prices from the California Power 

            7    Exchange are appropriate to use to compensate nonutility 

            8    generators. 

            9               On this issue, APX will defer to the testimony of 

           10    others. 

           11               APX believes that the enactment of Assembly 

           12    Bill 1890 provides the structure for the transition to 

           13    competitive generation markets in California. 

           14               Moreover, APX believes that open trading in the 

           15    power market is essential for competition to develop, just 

           16    as open trading supports competitive markets in other 

           17    industries. 

           18               Automated Power Exchange recognizes that the 

           19    market-surveillance committees of the California ISO and the 

           20    California Power Exchange present reports which address the 

           21    efficiency of the power markets in the restructured 

           22    California arena. 

           23               APX acknowledges that these and related reports 

           24    raise important issues; however, APX testimony, to be 

           25    presented later, does not address the issue of efficiency in 

           26    the underlying market for power but, instead, addresses the 

           27    efficiency in the market for power trading. 

           28               APX notes that the primary forum for addressing 
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            1    the issues in the underlying power market is the Federal 

            2    Energy Regulatory Commission, or FERC. 

            3               Moreover, APX does not believe that the 

            4    inefficiency in the underlying market, if it should be 

            5    proven, justifies the maintenance of inefficiency in the 

            6    power-trading market which we allege is there. 

            7               In sum, in its testimony, APX identifies a 

            8    significant inefficiency in the power-trading market in the 

            9    mandate -- that mandate that the utilities trade exclusively 

           10    in the California Power Exchange. 

           11               APX contends that removal of this impediment to 

           12    trading will significantly improve the efficiency in the 

           13    power-trading market. 

           14               Moreover, such removal will allow the Commission 

           15    to use the prices of the California Power Exchange to 

           16    compensate nonutility generators (indicating).

           17           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Crossen. 

           18               Ms. Urick?  

           19                        ARGUMENT OF MS. URICK

           20           MS. URICK:  Thank you, your Honor. 

           21               Good afternoon, Commissioner Neeper, Judge Cooke. 

           22               My name is Lisa Urick with the California Power 

           23    Exchange. 

           24               I want to make three points this afternoon 

           25    regarding one of the tasks of the first phase of this 

           26    proceeding for adopt- -- which is adopting criteria to 

           27    determine whether the Power Exchange is functioning properly 

           28    for purposes of basing payments to QFs on PX prices. 
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            1               First, I want to emphasize that the CalPX and the 

            2    broader electric market are, to us, indeed, very distinct 

            3    concepts for the "functioning properly" criteria and the 

            4    implementation of Section 390. 

            5               As you know, Section 390 requires the Commission 

            6    to determine that the independent Power Exchange is 

            7    functioning properly for purposes of switching to PX-based 

            8    prices for utility payments to QFs. 

            9               The statute does not call for a finding that the 

           10    market is functioning properly for all of the broader 

           11    purposes of electric restructuring and the transition 

           12    period. 

           13               Some of the testimony in this case does not 

           14    observe that distinction. 

           15               Now, I don't mean to suggest that the functioning 

           16    of the broader market is not a relevant or useful inquiry; 

           17    indeed, it is; simply that we must be precise in how we 

           18    explore these concepts in implementing Section 390. 

           19               For example, after both phases have concluded, 

           20    the Commission might determine that the CalPX is functioning 

           21    properly for purposes of PX-based QF payments, and it will 

           22    issue an order so finding. 

           23               As another alternative, the Commission might 

           24    conclude that the CalPX is functioning properly based on 

           25    a reasonable set of criteria but the broader electric market 

           26    is not yet mature, and on that basis it may not be 

           27    appropriate to base payments to QFs on PX prices at this 

           28    time. 
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            1               The CalPX would therefore urge the Commission to 

            2    speak carefully on these points. 

            3               The broader market is certainly on track to 

            4    achieve a full transition, but, without question, it's still 

            5    in the early stages of development. 

            6               The main point here is that the Commission should 

            7    not apply to the CalPX criteria or conclusions that are, 

            8    instead, within the realm of the functioning of the broader 

            9    market. 

           10               My second point concerns criteria that have been 

           11    proposed for determining whether the PX is functioning 

           12    properly for purposes of PX-based QF payments. 

           13               Among the more useful criteria that the CalPX 

           14    would endorse are pricing market transparency and the 

           15    presence of adequate monitoring and compliance mechanisms. 

           16               In its testimony, we have endorsed a useful set 

           17    of criteria which goes beyond these two points, and I will 

           18    not delve into those others now, but I did want to highlight 

           19    these for your attention. 

           20               First, Pricing Market Transparency.  As you know 

           21    transparency includes the accessibility of accurate and 

           22    reliable information about both trading processes and 

           23    pricing available at little or no cost to participants, and 

           24    the importance of this is certainly well recognized, 

           25    certainly by the parties here as well as the Commission.   ]

           26               Price and market transparency provide 

           27    a foundation for the restructured electric market and 

           28    a basis for which the Commission and the public can have 
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            1    confidence that PX prices are reliable.

            2               As I said, the Commission has already stated 

            3    the importance of price discovery multiple times 

            4    certainly in a preferred policy decision and elsewhere. 

            5               Price transparency also mitigates concerns about 

            6    market power.  So I would urge the Commission to adopt price 

            7    and market transparency as well as criteria.

            8               The second criteria I would like to emphasize 

            9    and discuss is the presence of effective monitoring and 

           10    compliance to ensure that the PX and the market are 

           11    operating fairly and efficiently. 

           12               Both the CalPX and the ISO have entities in place 

           13    to identify anomalies or structural problems in the market 

           14    to protect and enhance efficiency and take appropriate steps 

           15    where necessary.

           16               Now, in potentially adopting criteria related to 

           17    market monitoring and compliance, however, I would urge 

           18    caution.  A number of parties have relied upon actual 

           19    underlying conclusions contained in the various market 

           20    monitoring and compliance unit reports to support criteria 

           21    for the functioning properly question or to suggest that 

           22    the PX and/or the market are not functioning properly.

           23               The CalPX certainly supports effective monitoring 

           24    and compliance as an important functioning properly criteria 

           25    because these entities perform a very valuable role in 

           26    ensuring that the market is fair and efficient.

           27               Any criteria on this point, however, need go 

           28    no further than to endorse the presence of such mechanisms 
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            1    and entities.

            2               I would urge caution in singling out specific 

            3    conclusions in various market reports to be used as 

            4    functioning properly criteria.  These reports are based on 

            5    precise historical facts and circumstances that provide 

            6    useful information but should not necessarily be adopted 

            7    as criteria themselves for whether the CalPX is functioning 

            8    properly.

            9               For example, some argue that the complete absence 

           10    of evidence of market power should be criteria for whether 

           11    the PX is functioning properly for implementing Section 390.  

           12    Adoption of such a criterion would pose supremely difficult 

           13    challenges for reaching workable and commonly accepted 

           14    definitions and methodologies.

           15               Problems and challenges, especially in the 

           16    start-up phase of the new market, both the CalPX market and 

           17    the broader market, are to be expected, and these reports 

           18    can highlight these situations, and these entities, the 

           19    market monitoring committee and the compliance unit, can 

           20    take appropriate steps based on their findings.

           21               Quite simply, however, there's no need to go 

           22    further than recognize the presence of these mechanisms.  

           23    I would emphasize, therefore, the process and not 

           24    the results.

           25               Finally, my third point is related and I would 

           26    just encourage you to keep in mind that any criteria 

           27    ultimately selected should be readily measurable in ways 

           28    that minimize dispute and misinterpretation.  A number of 
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            1    criteria may be valid in the abstract that have been 

            2    suggested, but they would be very difficult to implement. 

            3               Two good examples would be market competitiveness 

            4    and evidence of market power, as I just mentioned.  While 

            5    these terms of art certainly capture important features of 

            6    the market, they could be subject to endless dispute in 

            7    terms of application as criteria and they, in large part, go 

            8    beyond the more narrow question of whether the PX is 

            9    functioning properly for purposes of QF payments.

           10               There should be a simple test for each of the 

           11    criteria:  How is it to be defined and measured?  And if 

           12    there are no objective means to achieve that, the criteria 

           13    should be discarded or modified in ways that make it 

           14    operational.

           15               Thank you very much for your time this afternoon.  

           16    The CalPX appreciates the opportunity to share its views 

           17    with you.

           18           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Ms. Urick.

           19               Let's be off the record. 

           20               (Off the record)

           21           ALJ COOKE:  All right.  Back on the record.

           22               We'll begin with rebuttal to the opening argument 

           23    with Edison. 

           24               You have six minutes, Mr. Woodruff.

           25                      ARGUMENT OF MR. WOODRUFF

           26           MR. WOODRUFF:  Thank you, Judge Cooke.  I'd only like 

           27    to make a couple of points.

           28               Before turning to those points, I would like to 
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            1    address something that Mr. Alcantar said.  He said that 

            2    he was unable to access information underlying Exhibit 57 

            3    which we provided to you from the PX. 

            4               My understanding is that that is freely available 

            5    on the website which I believe is where we obtained the 

            6    information.

            7               I also wanted to indicate that Edison's 

            8    assumptions in its calculations underlying those charts are 

            9    something that we're certainly willing to make available 

           10    to you and to all of the parties in the proceeding, and 

           11    we have copies available here to take a look at the 

           12    assumptions underlying those graphs. 

           13               We think that these assumptions should be part of 

           14    the record and that if any -- if there's any confusion or 

           15    misunderstanding about them, that Dr. Davis certainly should 

           16    be cross-examined on the assumptions underlying those 

           17    graphs. 

           18               So we do make those available.

           19               There have been a number of points leveled 

           20    against the new market entrant methodology that Edison has 

           21    proposed.  It's been said that it is administratively 

           22    difficult; it will be a return to the ECAC proceedings to 

           23    battles over SRAC. 

           24               We don't think that's the case.  It's 

           25    a methodology that is much more closely aligned to 

           26    the transition formula proposed by the parties which is 

           27    currently in force and which has been relatively 

           28    uncontroversial. 
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            1               It is based on transparent prices, 

            2    gas transportation prices, burner-tip prices, and a new 

            3    market entrant operating characteristics that are relatively 

            4    transparent. 

            5               New market entrant is not a mystery.  This is not 

            6    a hypothetical construct that Edison has come up with. 

            7               At the California Energy Commission there are 

            8    over 15,000 megawatts of licensing applications by parties 

            9    for plants which very -- are very closely aligned with the 

           10    heat rate characteristics and operational characteristics of 

           11    the new market entrant that we propose as a substitute 

           12    resource in this proceeding, which brings me to the second 

           13    point.  

           14               I listened to Mr. Alcantar and Mr. Karp talk 

           15    about how the new market entrant methodology does not comply 

           16    with PURPA, how it doesn't comply with Section 390.

           17               I was also struck, particularly in listening to 

           18    Mr. Alcantar, by the fact that, conceptually, what we are 

           19    proposing as to SRAC methodology in this case is very 

           20    similar to what IEP and CAC are proposing.  They're both 

           21    equally based on the market clearing price, although 

           22    they yield extremely different results. 

           23               As Dr. Stern has indicated in his testimony, the 

           24    IEP proposal, if adopted, would result in a $4 billion 

           25    increase annually over the Power Exchange price. 

           26               Edison's proposal, obviously, results in a 

           27    reduction. 

           28               What we're about to hear is trying to determine 
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            1    avoided costs.  And, again, as I listened to Mr. Alcantar 

            2    talking about based on, what became very clear is that 

            3    the IEP proposal proposes to take the market clearing price 

            4    and adjust it based on an administratively determined 

            5    methodology, QF-in/QF-out. 

            6               It reaches the extreme result that it does by 

            7    applying that administrative methodology. 

            8               Now, the QF-in/-out methodology goes back to 

            9    1988.  The same parties were before this Commission in 1988 

           10    debating the merits of QF-in and QF-out, different 

           11    methodologies for determining SRAC. 

           12               The Commission ultimately adopted in the 

           13    88-03-079 QF-in/-out methodology for determining SRAC, but 

           14    it said in that decision that the other proposals -- 

           15    particularly QF-in -- had merit. 

           16               The Commission said in that proceeding that the 

           17    QF-in proposal made by Edison and others in that proceeding 

           18    did not violate federal law. 

           19               And so, conceptually, what is being proposed 

           20    by IEP and what is being proposed by Edison is fairly 

           21    similar.  Edison proposes to apply a substitute resource 

           22    methodology to the market clearing price to determine a 

           23    proper avoided cost of energy.

           24               Now, in the 88-03-079 decision, the Commission 

           25    recognized in adopting the QF-in/-out methodology that 

           26    circumstances could change.  There was testimony in that 

           27    proceeding that there was not a current spot market in 1988, 

           28    that there were very few QFs at that time who were on posted 

                       PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

                                  SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA

                                                                        83

            1    avoided costs.

            2               But, today, almost all of the QFs are on posted 

            3    avoided costs.  And when you perform the QF-in/-out 

            4    methodology, it yields absurd results. 

            5               The Commission anticipated in 1988 that 

            6    circumstances would change, that there would be a market 

            7    implemented, as it is today, that by the end of the decade 

            8    almost all of the QFs would be off forecast pricing for 

            9    energy, and that they would be on short-run avoided cost. 

           10    That is what's occurring in the market today. 

           11               Now, under those circumstances, the Commission 

           12    recognized that substitute resource methodology was an 

           13    appropriate way to determine avoid costs.  In this market 

           14    substitute resource is the new market entrant.

           15               Thank you.

           16           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Woodruff.

           17               Mr. Ramos, you have ten minutes.

           18                        ARGUMENT OF MR. RAMOS

           19           MR. RAMOS:  What ORA has listened to earlier in 

           20    opening statements is basically a position that Section 390 

           21    is a fait accompli, that its terms are plain on its face and 

           22    there is no real discretion that can be pursued by the 

           23    California Public Utilities Commission in its implementation 

           24    and in its rulemaking. 

           25               Somehow, there was opening statements as to a 

           26    deal, a deal which had been struck, a deal which in many 

           27    respects has not been adhered to. 

           28               ORA in its preceding aspect as the Division of 
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            1    Ratepayer Advocates was not involved in any type of deal, 

            2    not aware of any type of deal which ORA or its preceding 

            3    interest as the Division of Ratepayer Advocates was involved 

            4    in any type of agreement or understanding as to what 

            5    precisely Section 390 meant. 

            6               What we do feel is that this is not a contract.  

            7    This is a statute that the Commission must interpret statute 

            8    in accordance with rational and reasonable rulemaking.  

            9    That's within its discretion to do so, to establish rational 

           10    and reasonable rules and to hopefully have Courts defer to 

           11    the administrative rulemaking function of the California 

           12    Public Utilities Commission.

           13               So if we take that construct and look at what 

           14    the plain text of Section 390 states, what the Division of 

           15    Ratepayer -- the Office of Ratepayer Advocates is firmly 

           16    in the belief that what Section 390 states -- and Section 

           17    390 states specifically -- what it states and what it means 

           18    is that the Commission has the authority -- indeed, it has 

           19    the duty and the responsibility to determine whether the 

           20    language, and I quote, based on the clearing price paid by 

           21    the Independent Power Exchange, end quote, means that 

           22    the PX-based clearing price is, in all respects, equal to 

           23    the PX clearing price. 

           24               I don't think that's tortured logic or some type 

           25    of trick that attorneys use to create ambiguity within 

           26    statutory language.  I think when you look at whether, 

           27    based on the clearing price, incorporates or enables 

           28    the California Public Utilities Commission to fashion rules 
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            1    in accordance with the statute, we feel that it does.  Based 

            2    on the clearing price does not strictly mean PX clearing 

            3    price.  They are distinct concepts under the statutory 

            4    structure. 

            5               That's what we're trying to convey, and that's 

            6    what we feel is the appropriate way to read the statute.

            7               The second sentence of Section 390(d), the 

            8    question there the Office of Ratepayer Advocates believes is 

            9    when it's triggered, when does it apply, when is it 

           10    appropriate to be used.

           11               Now, the California Public Utilities Commission 

           12    must determine that the PX-based price is equivalent to or 

           13    it can determine whether it's equivalent to the PX-based 

           14    clearing price. 

           15               But what we're trying to say -- what the Office 

           16    of Ratepayer Advocates is trying to say is that's not 

           17    entirely clear. 

           18               If you look at the second sentence of 

           19    Section 390(d) and look at what it clearly states there, 

           20    it provides for one factual scenario to trigger its 

           21    provision.

           22               Now, whether that factual scenario is the 

           23    all-encompassing paramount factual scenario which everything 

           24    must flow from, it can't be as a matter of administrative 

           25    law. 

           26               The Office of Ratepayer Advocates believes that 

           27    the California Public Utilities Commission must determine 

           28    whether -- in fact if you look at the clearing price, the PX 
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            1    clearing price, whether that in fact is the PX-based price 

            2    for purposes of the statute.

            3               Now, what you did hear from the QFs is that 

            4    the issue of whether there is capacity value in the 

            5    PX clearing price has been asked and answered. 

            6               We -- the Office of Ratepayer Advocates does not 

            7    believe that that, in fact, has been answered.  The scoping 

            8    memo which binds this proceeding explicitly provides on 

            9    page 2 that review within this proceeding will include a, 

           10    quote, determination of any capacity value embedded in the 

           11    PX-based SRAC pursuant to Code Section 390(d), end of quote. 

           12               The QFs' interests have argued that the position 

           13    of the Office of Ratepayer Advocates at Section 390(d) does 

           14    not prescribe a methodology.  This is a misstatement. 

           15               The issue is not whether 390(d) formulates 

           16    prescriptive or not, but when it is prescriptive, when it is 

           17    triggered. 

           18               QF interests take the position that it is always 

           19    prescriptive, that it always controls and binds 

           20    this proceeding and subsequent market transactions.

           21               The 390(d) formula is specific.  390(d) 

           22    prescribes the use of that formula if and only if the 

           23    Commission determines that the PX based price is equal to 

           24    the PX clearing price.

           25               Now, there's been testimony that has indicated 

           26    or -- I should say, opening statements that have indicated 

           27    that the capacity adder for SO-1 contracts would apply to 

           28    Edison and SDG&E but not to PG&E.  This position cannot be 
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            1    reconciled with PURPA. 

            2               If the absence of a capacity adder yields 

            3    payments that reflect avoided costs, then the capacity adder 

            4    in addition necessarily results in payments above avoided 

            5    costs.  That's what ORA feels.

            6               Now, Mr. Alcantar has addressed the issue of 

            7    PX-based pricing and what it means.  ORA has problems with 

            8    that definition, and we're still unclear as to what 

            9    precisely is meant.

           10               At various points Mr. Alcantar seems to suggest 

           11    that PX-based means equal to the clearing price or equal to 

           12    some combination of different clearing prices.  But if you 

           13    go further into his opening statement, he adds that 

           14    you still must account for the, quote, but-for provision of 

           15    PURPA and that PX-based did not mean equal to the PX price.

           16               His apparent definition is that PX-based means 

           17    equal to the PX except when it isn't.

           18               Now, there has to be consistency in the 

           19    application of rules of construction of statutes, but we 

           20    feel that there is sufficient ambiguity within the statute, 

           21    sufficient -- a sufficient basis for the Commission to 

           22    basically create rules which implement the purpose of the 

           23    statute, and that it's not entirely clear and that this 

           24    proceeding is not a fait accompli, that a deal has been cut.  

           25    ORA was never a party to if, in fact, a deal was cut or it 

           26    has never been a party to. 

           27               And although the statute may seem plain on its 

           28    face, there's sufficient wigle room, let's say, for the 
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            1    Commission to fashion rules which are in accordance with the 

            2    provisions of PURPA and this Commission precedence.

            3           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Ramos.

            4               Mr. Karp, you have four minutes.

            5                        ARGUMENT OF MR. KARP

            6           MR. KARP:  Thank you, your Honor.

            7               I only want to respond to two comments made by 

            8    Mr. Woodruff.

            9               The first comment was Mr. Woodruff's argument 

           10    that the new entrant method would not be controversial and 

           11    administratively burdensome.  Mr. Woodruff points out it 

           12    would be based upon public indicia of various market 

           13    indicators. 

           14               And I'm just going to use one example for point 

           15    of illustration how this could be complex even with public 

           16    indices.  And I'll use gas costs that might be imputed into 

           17    the methodology for the new entrant. 

           18               Public indices for gas costs were available back 

           19    in the days when we had monthly postings of gas costs and 

           20    quarterly postings of gas costs.  But notwithstanding the 

           21    fact there were public indices, available there were 

           22    constant protests of the choice of indices used and the 

           23    different prices picked out by utilities to reflect the 

           24    avoided costs of gas. 

           25               And just as an example, there are some generators 

           26    that in today's market will buy gas at the citygate and will 

           27    only use the utility to transport gas on a local 

           28    distribution system. 
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            1               Other generators will buy gas at the California 

            2    border, and they'll purchase their own firm intrastate 

            3    capacity and transport the gas using that, they'll enter 

            4    different costs. 

            5               Other generators might buy gas at the basin, and 

            6    they'll buy firm interstate capacity and pay for firm 

            7    interstate capacity and then firm intrastate capacity, and 

            8    then only use a local distribution service from the utility. 

            9               Still other generates may have does discounted 

           10    local intrastate gas contracts.  So they'll have different 

           11    costs that are published. 

           12               Other generators might pay nothing for gas.  They 

           13    might enter into a tolling arrangement whereby all they do 

           14    is convert gas given to them by another party into 

           15    electricity.

           16           ALJ COOKE:  Did you say a tolling arrangement?

           17           MR. KARP:  Tolling, yeah. 

           18               So, you see, even what might be used as -- there 

           19    might be public indicia of certain costs, but there will be 

           20    no consensus necessarily on what actually represents the 

           21    avoided costs for any individual generator or a theoretical 

           22    new entrant. 

           23               And determining this promises to be just as 

           24    complicated and controversial as we've experienced in the 

           25    past.

           26               The second point I want to respond to -- and this 

           27    is very briefly -- is Mr. Woodruff's comment that the new 

           28    entrant methodology is based upon the PX price.  I talked 
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            1    about this briefly in my opening comments. 

            2               As Edison itself states, the methodology is based 

            3    upon the energy costs of a theoretical new entrant.  It 

            4    simply uses the PX as either an inflator or a deflator to 

            5    that like a CPI works. 

            6               No one would say that a price that had a CPI 

            7    component is based on the CPI.  It's based the primary 

            8    determinant.  It's based upon the cost of the new entrant. 

            9               That concludes my remarks.

           10               Thank you.

           11           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Karp.

           12               Mr. Kerner?

           13                       ARGUMENT OF MR. KERNER

           14           MR. KERNER:  Yes.  Thank you, your Honor.

           15               Also just a couple of comments on Mr. Woodruff's 

           16    presentation.  He analogizes Edison's new market entrant 

           17    proposal to IEP's QF-in/-out proposal and claims that 

           18    they're similar. 

           19               That's absolutely absurd.  QFs-in/QFs-out as 

           20    proposed by IEP relies entirely on PX data.  You need to 

           21    know what the PX clearing price is and you need to know the 

           22    megawatt hours of QFs which are contained within that price. 

           23               There are no external references.

           24               But Mr. Woodruff's own admission as summarized in 

           25    part just now by Mr. Karp, the new market entrant approach 

           26    is based on external indices of gas pricing, heat rates, 

           27    other information related to this hypothetical new market 

           28    entrant. 
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            1               I would submit that that amount as a matter of 

            2    fact through an admission, subject to review of the 

            3    transcript, that his approach, Edison's approach, is not 

            4    based on the PX.  And as a matter of law you may not adopt 

            5    it for that reason based on his own testimony here or 

            6    statement here.

            7               He also indicates that in a rather contortive 

            8    manner that the QF-in/-out approach results in absurd 

            9    results, as he puts it, noting prior decisions of the 

           10    Commission which discuss the suitability of the QF-in/-out 

           11    approach and notes that unlike those days when it was 

           12    applied, we now have a market. 

           13               We have a market in which Edison is scheduling 

           14    into the PX thousands of megawatts hours of QFs at zero.  

           15    This is Mr. Woodruff's market. 

           16               That's the problem that we're attempting to 

           17    address as indicated in opening statements.  It's interim 

           18    and related to that market dysfunction.

           19               Thank you very much.

           20           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Kerner.

           21               Mr. Alcantar.

           22               We'll be off the record while you move forward. 

           23               (Off the record)

           24            ALJ COOKE:  We'll be back on the record.

           25               Mr. Alcantar, you have eight minutes.

           26                      ARGUMENT OF MR. ALCANTAR

           27           MR. ALCANTAR:  Thank you. 

           28               Please don't tell us today that you're going to 
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            1    rely on, quote un quote, wiggle room within a statute that 

            2    appears clear on its face.

            3               Thank you.  I have nothing further.

            4               (Laughter)

            5           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you, Mr. Alcantar.

            6               We'll be off the record.

            7               (Off the record)                       ]

            8           ALJ COOKE:  We'll go on the record. 

            9               While we were off the record, we discussed 

           10    Exhibit 57, which was marked for identification this 

           11    morning.  That will be sponsored by Edison Witness Davis.  

           12    And Mr. Woodruff distributed the workpapers for that 

           13    exhibit. 

           14               There is concern whether this provides the full 

           15    underlying data and methodology for purposes of development 

           16    of Exhibit 57. 

           17               The parties will go back and look at that tonight 

           18    and we'll discuss this issue further tomorrow. 

           19               We discussed briefly issues surrounding 

           20    admissibility standards and the availability of the 

           21    methodology to all parties. 

           22               At this point in time we should discuss the 

           23    motions to strike. 

           24               We have two motions: 

           25               One by San Diego Gas & Electric Company, which is 

           26    a motion to strike and to withdraw certain elements of the 

           27    prefiled testimony; in addition, we have a motion by the 

           28    Cogeneration Association of California, et al., to strike 
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            1    portions of testimony by ORA and Edison. 

            2               Before we get to any responses to the motion, let 

            3    me just ask the parties whether there are any objections to 

            4    SDG&E's withdrawal of the portion of the testimony that it 

            5    identified?  

            6           MR. ALCANTAR:  No objection.

            7           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Heads are nodding no. 

            8           ALJ COOKE:  Hearing none, I would grant that portion 

            9    of the motion. 

           10               Okay.  With that, let's turn to IEP. 

           11               SDG&E identified certain aspects of 

           12    Mr. Branchcomb's testimony. 

           13               Could you respond to their motion? 

           14                       ARGUMENT OF MR. KERNER

           15           MR.  KERNER:  Yes, your Honor.  Thank you. 

           16               The material that San Diego has identified is 

           17    entitled Evaluation of the PX, and by its terms, it says -- 

           18    and in the introduction -- that while the Commission has -- 

           19    I'm paraphrasing -- reserved for Phase 2 the actual 

           20    application of the criteria, it's useful to assess the 

           21    current status. 

           22               San Diego's perception of this material as -- in 

           23    terms of rendering an ultimate decision by yourselves, a 

           24    Phase 2 issue, I think is correct. 

           25               I do, however, think that having this material in 

           26    the record at this point may prove beneficial to you later 

           27    in the case depending upon what kind of resolutions you want 

           28    to make with respect to the criteria. 
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            1               My preference would be to maintain the material 

            2    even if you accord it appropriate weight, given the scope of 

            3    Phase 1. 

            4               Having said that, I will point out, if you choose 

            5    to go the other direction and remove the material, that, by 

            6    the same logic applied by San Diego in eliminating its 

            7    material and in moving to strike the IEP material, there are 

            8    significant portions of other parties' testimony that will 

            9    need to be treated similarly, leading to mine. 

           10               For example, our -- Edison's testimony, at 

           11    Section 4-B, where they also discuss the current status of 

           12    the PX; and I would venture to guess -- I haven't -- I 

           13    haven't identified the pages and lines, but I believe 

           14    Mr. Kritikson's testimony is rooted, in whole or in part, on 

           15    the view that the PX is functioning properly for purposes of 

           16    this inquiry and therefore also goes to the ultimate issue. 

           17    So that's -- that's my response. 

           18           ALJ COOKE:  Would you agree that there are certain 

           19    easily identifiable sentences where it makes a clear 

           20    statement about whether the criteria are met? 

           21               For example, in Mr. Branchcomb's testimony, 

           22    page 4, the last sentence? 

           23           MR. KERNER:  Yes, I would. 

           24               The only thing -- you know, you know, what 

           25    I would add:  You know, part -- part of what is happening in 

           26    this case that makes it a little bit -- the reason I'm 

           27    counseling in favor of preserving the material is that one 

           28    of the things that the Commission has to decide is whether 
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            1    you're comfortable making permanent eliminating the true-up, 

            2    and so on, associated with the voluntary people who flip. 

            3               Okay.  So part of what we're attempting to 

            4    accomplish by this material, setting aside the Phase 2 

            5    question of when you can throw us all into the marketplace, 

            6    is are you comfortable eliminating the true-up for the 

            7    voluntary people in the meantime? 

            8               And a lot of what Mr. Branchcomb is getting to 

            9    here is to say:  Look, for that purpose things are fine.  

           10    Okay.  You can let these people flip, you can entrench for 

           11    now, you know, the day-ahead, by-hour price subject to 

           12    whatever decision you make at the end of the year, and you 

           13    should be comfortable doing that because, within that 

           14    limited context, the market's okay. 

           15               It doesn't mean it's okay for the ultimate 

           16    mandatory flip, but it's sufficient that you can be 

           17    comfortable making the decision to permanently, you know, 

           18    authorize the voluntary flip and leave in place the pricing 

           19    for that without a true-up. 

           20               So that's kind of what I was suggesting by saying 

           21    you may want to leave this material here because it 

           22    (indicating) -- it does have a use to you.  Even if not with 

           23    respect to your ultimate decision in Phase 2. 

           24           ALJ COOKE:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Kerner. 

           25           MR. KERNER:  Yes. 

           26           ALJ COOKE:  Mr. Kerner's comments brought to mind the 

           27    fact that part of what you've -- what SDG&E has sought to 

           28    strike in CCC's rebuttal testimony is responsive rebuttal to 
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            1    the PX's testimony regarding this subject matter, yet 

            2    you've -- SDG&E has not made a motion to strike any of the 

            3    PX's testimony. 

            4               Is that correct, Mr. Barnes? 

            5           MR. BARNES:  That's right. 

            6           ALJ COOKE:  Is there --

            7           MR. BARNES:  I have no objection to it being 

            8    stricken.  I did not move to have it stricken. 

            9           ALJ COOKE:  Okay. 

           10               Why don't we have Mr. Karp's response for CCC on 

           11    the motion to strike by SDG&E.  

           12                        ARGUMENT OF MR. KARP

           13           MR. KARP:  Thank you, your Honor. 

           14               When I first began reading the motion I actually 

           15    sympathized with the opening parts, that Phase 2 is to 

           16    consider the question of whether the PX is functioning 

           17    properly; and testimony regarding that issue should not be 

           18    addressed in Phase 1. 

           19               When I got to reading the actual testimony they 

           20    were proposing to strike, I was really surprised:  

           21               They didn't propose to strike the PX testimony 

           22    that says the PX is functioning properly.  They didn't 

           23    propose to strike the Edison testimony which says the PX is 

           24    not functioning properly; and they didn't propose to strike 

           25    the ORA testimony which says the PX is not functioning 

           26    properly. 

           27               Instead, for Mr. Beach, they proposed to strike 

           28    testimony in respect of his opening testimony that goes 
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            1    exclusively to which criteria should the Commission adopt to 

            2    determine whether the PX is functioning properly, wholly a 

            3    question for Phase 1. 

            4               Mr. Beach has no testimony about whether the PX 

            5    is or isn't functioning properly. 

            6               All the testimony -- I'd like to point you to 

            7    some places -- deal with criteria. 

            8               For example, on page 9, the first portion of 

            9    testimony to be stricken, Mr. Beach is talking about 

           10    criteria that will deal with market concentration, and 

           11    Mr. Beach says the Commission should apply this test to both 

           12    buyers ask sellers; and there's testimony about the fact 

           13    that the buyers in this market have concentration of market 

           14    power. 

           15               This testimony goes to the question of what 

           16    criteria should be adopted, and it explains that it's 

           17    important to have criteria that looks at the concentrations 

           18    of both the buyers and the sellers. 

           19               Then you get to the next portion of testimony 

           20    that SDG&E proposed to strike, and they actually proposed to 

           21    strike proposed criteria. 

           22               If you look at page 13, line 1, it's a question:  

           23    What criteria do you propose to deal with this issue? 

           24               And in Mr. Beach's answer:  I propose the 

           25    following criteria. 

           26               That comes up at page 13, at page 15, at page 18, 

           27    and at page 19. 

           28               None of this goes to the question of whether the 
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            1    PX is or isn't functioning properly.  It all deals with 

            2    criteria. 

            3               The exhibits that SDG&E proposes to strike all 

            4    support Mr. Beach's comments that there are criteria that 

            5    should be adopted and you have to deal with the real world 

            6    when you look at these criteria. 

            7               It doesn't make sense for the Commission to 

            8    simply adopt the criteria out looking at the market and 

            9    tailoring the criteria to the market. 

           10               You can't adopt criteria in a vacuum.  And all 

           11    this testimony, from the opening testimony of Mr. Beach, 

           12    goes to laying some context for criteria that Mr. Beach 

           13    proposes. 

           14           ALJ COOKE:  Are they attachments -- they would be 

           15    RTB-2 through 5 essentially attached for ease of reference? 

           16               I mean, given that many of the parties cited to 

           17    these particular reports, I'm assuming that they're attached 

           18    for reference --

           19           MR. KARP: Yes. 

           20           ALJ COOKE:  -- similar to any of the citations?

           21           MR. KARP:  Yes.  They're all public documents.  The 

           22    Commission can take official notice of them.  But since 

           23    we've referred to them, here they are. 

           24               With respect to Mr. Beach's rebuttal testimony, 

           25    we have no problem now that the Commission has granted 

           26    SDG&E's motion to withdraw its testimony on the "functioning 

           27    properly" question, withdrawing the relevant testimony for 

           28    Mr. Beach in response to SDG&E's testimony. 
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            1               We would object, however, to withdrawing 

            2    testimony or having stricken testimony that responds to the 

            3    PX's "functioning properly" stuff, for want of other 

            4    words -- sorry about that -- unless that was also stricken. 

            5           ALJ COOKE:  The responsive portion of Exhibit 7 would 

            6    be at page 6, line 26 through page 8, line 11? 

            7           MR. KARP:  Um --

            8           ALJ COOKE:  -- or through --

            9           MR. KARP:  I think it would be page 7.

           10           ALJ COOKE:  Or through 24?

           11           MR. KARP:  I think I would start even at the first 

           12    paragraph you referred to, he really talks about both SDG&E 

           13    and the PX.

           14           ALJ COOKE:  Okay.

           15           MR. KARP:  I would say it's really page 7, line 14 

           16    through page 8, line 24. 

           17               And then, if the PX's testimony is stricken, we 

           18    could be begin at page 6, line 26, all the way through to 

           19    the top -- the end of page 9. 

           20           ALJ COOKE:  Okay.  So we have CCC's response to the 

           21    SDG&E motion. 

           22               Any response from SDG&E?  

           23                       ARGUMENT OF MR. BARNES

           24           MR. BARNES:  Well, your Honor, I appreciate 

           25    Mr. Karp's concession on the withdrawing responsive parts of 

           26    Dr. Schelhorse; I will also concede that certain portions of 

           27    the material that we requested stricken from Witness Beach 

           28    does touch upon the criteria but it's interwoven with 
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            1    conclusions that the market is not now currently functioning 

            2    properly.  So the two concepts are woven together 

            3    inextricably, and that's why we've asked to have them 

            4    stricken. 

            5               Beyond that, I think the best thing for you to 

            6    do, what you have to do is look at the testimony and make 

            7    your own decision. 

            8           ALJ COOKE:  Yes, you're right. 

            9                (Laughter)

           10           MR. KARP:  Can I get a brief response to that?

           11           ALJ COOKE:  No. 

           12               We'll move on to the CAC motion, if that's all 

           13    right with you, Commissioner Neeper. 

           14           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  He's accepting it reluctantly; 

           15    and I'm accepting it reluctantly. 

           16               (Laughter)

           17           ALJ COOKE:  In the CAC motion, there is a motion to 

           18    strike portions of the Edison and ORA testimony. 

           19               Let's start with Mr. Ramos since I know you have 

           20    a settlement conference to go to. 

           21                        ARGUMENT OF MR. RAMOS

           22           MR. RAMOS:  Well, I think -- I think more on the 

           23    policy angle, I think the purpose of this proceeding, most 

           24    importantly, that it's one that fosters an open exchange of 

           25    policy recommendations and ideas in accordance with 

           26    Section 390. 

           27               What ORA has proposed are basically tools of 

           28    analysis for the Commission to utilize in its function of 
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            1    determining whether capacity exists. 

            2               As the scoping memo directs in this proceeding, 

            3    we have to look for capacity, where is the capacity, and 

            4    deal with the capacity issue. 

            5               I think the way this proceeding has been 

            6    formulated, it's adversarial but at the same time it's a 

            7    rulemaking; so the adversarial portion of it is basically 

            8    ORA's witnesses and those of other parties aligned with ORA 

            9    will be subject to withering cross-examination. 

           10               No word will go without rebuttal.  Everything 

           11    will be examined and scrutinized in an open proceeding and 

           12    an open setting because essentially the way ORA views this 

           13    motion to strike the testimony is that it -- although 

           14    procedural, it's substantively a motion for summary judgment 

           15    to exclude a significant portion of ORA's policy 

           16    recommendations within the context of this proceeding. 

           17               Now, whether the decision-makers, and by this 

           18    I mean Commissioner and the Administrative Law Judge -- feel 

           19    that somehow ORA is overreaching, well, of course, it's 

           20    within its -- within its powers to -- to curtail that; 

           21    however, ORA does not feel that is in fact the case.  ORA 

           22    feels that there has to be an open exchange of ideas, and we 

           23    have to determine whether ORA's proposals will be subject to 

           24    cross-examination and whether they fit and succeed and move 

           25    on and make it into the record; and that's what our proposal 

           26    is, is in order to foster the policy debate, in order to 

           27    exchange ideas, and to see whether our recommendations 

           28    withstand the scrutiny of affected parties. 
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            1           ALJ COOKE:  In Exhibit 100, the portion that's 

            2    sponsored by Mr. Linsey, is -- appears to me to be primarily 

            3    legal argument.

            4           MR. RAMOS:  Specifically, what page are you on, your 

            5    Honor? 

            6           ALJ COOKE:  This would be the portion that they 

            7    suggest be stricken:  Pages 1, line 12 through 3, line 6; 

            8    and page 4, line 6 through page 5, line 28. 

            9           MR. RAMOS:  Well, the only thing I would say on that, 

           10    your Honor, is that there'd been consistent application and 

           11    we use perhaps as -- as basically it -- it being an example 

           12    of what is -- if you deem it necessary, what is policy 

           13    argument and what is outside the scope of this evidentiary 

           14    hearing.  

           15               I -- reluctantly, I would agree that, if the 

           16    standard is to be set, that it be -- that it be set 

           17    uniformly throughout the proceeding; and if this is an 

           18    example of what you feel is policy argument, then, then so 

           19    be it. 

           20           ALJ COOKE:  All right. 

           21               Mr. Woodruff, did you have any response for 

           22    Edison? 

           23                      ARGUMENT OF MR. WOODRUFF

           24           MR. WOODRUFF:  Yes.  The issue of words "based on" 

           25    has already received a lot of airplay in the opening, so I 

           26    don't want to spend a great deal of time with this; but what 

           27    I want to impress upon you is the importance of those words 

           28    based on this proceeding. 
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            1               We've heard commentary that those are very narrow 

            2    words. 

            3               We've also heard from Edison that those are the 

            4    words that give you the discretion to implement this 

            5    statute. 

            6               Now, the only authority cited in the motion to 

            7    strike is a dictionary, and what I'd suggest to you is that 

            8    this is not the place in the proceeding to substitute 

            9    semantic arguments for proper statutory construction. 

           10               This is something that ought to be briefed at the 

           11    end of the proceeding. 

           12               And to illustrate the danger of getting caught up 

           13    in the semantics at this point, I'd like to direct you to 

           14    part of the workpapers that we just submitted because the 

           15    output of applying a particular interpretation of "based on" 

           16    is just as important as the words themselves. 

           17               Now, under Attachment B what Edison did was to 

           18    prepare an hourly chart showing the application of the 

           19    methodology proposed by the folks that want to strike 

           20    Edison's testimony and also an hourly depiction of what 

           21    happens when you apply the QF-in/-out methodology on the 

           22    same day. 

           23               And this is the (indicating) -- this is the 

           24    Edison methodology graphically depicted for the day of 

           25    September 22nd, 1999. 

           26               Now, it is less than the PX price but it sure 

           27    looks like it's based on --

           28           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Hang on for a second. 
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            1               You're making reference to a sheet of paper and 

            2    the record reflects nothing about what you're showing. 

            3           MR. WOODRUFF:  Yes.  This is Attachment B to the 

            4    workpapers that were presented earlier and referred to by 

            5    Judge Cooke which are under consideration by the parties at 

            6    this point. 

            7               What I'd like to do is offer it as an exhibit.

            8           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  All right.  Thank you.  I just 

            9    wanted that piece of paper identified. 

           10           MR. WOODRUFF:  Yes.  It's Attachment B in the 

           11    workpapers. 

           12           ALJ COOKE:  Are you offering this as an exhibit at 

           13    this time for identification? 

           14           MR. WOODRUFF:  I would like to offer these three 

           15    particular documents that I'm referring to as an exhibit in 

           16    connection with the opposition to the motion to strike.  

           17                      ARGUMENT OF MR. ALCANTAR

           18           MR. ALCANTAR:  And I will oppose that motion based 

           19    upon the fact there is virtually no foundation for these 

           20    documents. 

           21               As far as we are concerned and through our 

           22    diligence over the last couple of weeks, knowing what's on 

           23    the website for the PX is not sufficient data to determine 

           24    what Edison has endeavored to extrapolate here. 

           25               I have no basis, nor does this Commission have 

           26    any basis, to know whether these pictures are anything but 

           27    a fantasy of pictures. 

           28               And I suggest that using them at this stage in 
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            1    any -- for any purpose -- certainly at this stage, in terms 

            2    of arguing this motion, to, if you will, lend itself to 

            3    support a result -- I can draw a picture, too, but on 

            4    equally hallow grounds at this moment without it being 

            5    reviewed or considered, and I don't believe it belongs at 

            6    this point in the argument. 

            7               The issue before you is whether or not there is 

            8    a legal basis to establish the scope of this proceeding in 

            9    a context beyond the statutory provision. 

           10           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Well, you have answered the 

           11    question. 

           12               I mean, that's a beating-your-wife statement. 

           13           MR. ALCANTAR:  Okay. 

           14           ALJ COOKE:  Can you continue your response to the 

           15    motion without using these documents at this point in time? 

           16               I would not be inclined to have them come in at 

           17    this point. 

           18           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  I couldn't agree with the Judge 

           19    more. 

           20               Really, we could have ruled on these motions 

           21    without anything by way of discussion. 

           22               What we contemplated what was one final effort on 

           23    any parties' part to express something that may not have 

           24    been clear in the papers already filed. 

           25                      ARGUMENT OF MR. WOODRUFF

           26           MR. WOODRUFF:  Thank you. 

           27               I have very little more to say.  Only again to 

           28    repeat that this is a complex statute that requires full 
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            1    briefing on the issue of statutory construction, and we 

            2    would recommend that the Commission defer that to a later 

            3    time in this proceeding so that no evidence which might be 

            4    helpful to the Commission in reaching its conclusion is 

            5    excluded prematurely. 

            6               Thank you. 

            7           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you. 

            8               Mr. Alcantar, do you have a response?  

            9                      ARGUMENT OF MR. ALCANTAR

           10           MR. ALCANTAR:  I just have one --

           11           ALJ COOKE:  Brief.  

           12           MR. ALCANTAR:  -- brief point. 

           13               And, really, I think it really covers the themes 

           14    that Edison counsel is suggesting is involved, but it really 

           15    is in response to ORA's argument. 

           16               Does capacity exist?  That's the question that 

           17    Mr. Ramos suggested to you ought to be evaluated here, and 

           18    in a way it's akin to what Edison is suggesting. 

           19               Is there another basis besides using the PX price 

           20    for establishing cost? 

           21               Well, I am certain you will, as we have -- if we 

           22    go back and look at context, not of just will scoping 

           23    memorandum -- which I think was very carefully drawn around 

           24    the statutory language -- it doesn't stop with the first 

           25    half of the question; there's a second phase or a second 

           26    phrase in that question:  Is there capacity consistent with 

           27    the standards of Section 390(d)? 

           28               It's not a, you know, whole cloth, new 
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            1    established, let's figure out whether capacity exists in 

            2    the -- in some theoretical construct today without 

            3    consideration for the statutory standard that was set. 

            4               Thank you. 

            5           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Could I ask a question of you?  

            6           MR. ALCANTAR:  Of course. 

            7           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  ORA, successor to DRA, entity 

            8    that never entered into a deal with anybody; do you know the 

            9    group I'm talking about? 

           10           MR. ALCANTAR:  I do, although I have a different -- 

           11    well, I hope to demonstrate to you a different recollection. 

           12           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Anyway, ORA suggested that 

           13    the -- that this, in effect, is a motion for summary 

           14    judgment. 

           15           MR. ALCANTAR:  (Nodding head)

           16           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Do you agree with that 

           17    characterization? 

           18           MR. ALCANTAR:  I don't think I can honestly stand 

           19    before you and suggest that that isn't an other procedural 

           20    avenue that you could take or that couldn't be argued; so, 

           21    yes. 

           22           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  I'm --

           23           MR. ALCANTAR:  Yes. 

           24           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Okay. 

           25               Thank you. 

           26           ALJ COOKE:  All right.  Why don't we take a 15-minute 

           27    recess and reconvene at five minutes to 3:00. 

           28               (Recess taken)                                  ]
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            1           ALJ COOKE:  We'll be back on the record.

            2               Commissioner Neeper and I have considered 

            3    the motions by SDG&E and CAC, et al., to strike portions of 

            4    the testimony.

            5               As I've previously indicated, we will grant 

            6    the portion of SDG&E's motion that deals with their request 

            7    to withdraw testimony sponsored by Mr. Schelhorse in 

            8    Exhibit 51.

            9               Therefore there should be a corresponding 

           10    withdrawal of testimony by Mr. Beach in Exhibit 7 that goes 

           11    from lines -- from page 7, line 14, through page 8, line 24. 

           12               And if you could prepare errata pages for that, 

           13    we can just put them in that way, or we can cross them off.  

           14    But other than that, we will deny the motion to strike.

           15               There are some conclusory statements with respect 

           16    to whether or not the PX is functioning properly.  However, 

           17    for purposes of this proceeding, those statements will not 

           18    be used outside of Phase 1. 

           19               We're going to leave the portions in for 

           20    contextual purposes for purposes of evaluating the various 

           21    criteria proposed and will not rely on any statements with 

           22    respect to whether the PX is functioning properly in 

           23    Phase 2.  There will be separate testimony for that.

           24               With respect to the CAC motion which deals with 

           25    Edison and ORA's testimony, we will grant a portion of that 

           26    motion that deals with -- that is in Exhibit 100 -- that's 

           27    ORA's testimony -- page 1, line 12, through page 3, line 6, 

           28    and page 4, line 6, to page 5, line 28; and the remainder of 
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            1    the motion will be denied.

            2               However, we do expect to see the argument that 

            3    we've struck out of the testimony in briefs.  The fact that 

            4    we're striking it here is simply because it's not something 

            5    for the testimony and is properly in briefs.

            6               Did you have a comment, Commissioner Neeper? 

            7           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Let me add one thing 

            8    from my point of view a most important consideration that 

            9    isn't necessarily apparent to parties but is apparent to an 

           10    ALJ and an Assigned Commissioner. 

           11               I'm incredibly smart, and I'm 20 percent of the 

           12    group, that's all.  And we've got to keep in mind, and we 

           13    are keeping in mind, there are four other Commissioners in 

           14    addition to this ALJ and myself, and we don't want to get in 

           15    a situation where we have a record that is thought to be 

           16    incomplete and not effective to permit fair consideration by 

           17    each Commissioner of a QF argument and proposal, the SDG&E 

           18    proposal and argument, the PG&E proposal and argument, the 

           19    SCE proposal and argument, the CAC, whoever it is. 

           20               We've got to get a record that permits a fair 

           21    consideration and comfort on the part of the Commissioners 

           22    that they can make a final dispositive decision and not send 

           23    the rascal back to hearing for further material. 

           24               Every once in a while that kind of thing occurs, 

           25    and it's really unhappy.  It's unhappy to the parties, and 

           26    they didn't mean to do it to themselves necessarily.  But 

           27    ALJs and Assigned Commissioners have got to watch out to 

           28    make sure the record is sufficient to permit consideration 
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            1    of everything. 

            2               And so we haven't decided for CAC and against ORA 

            3    or SCE.  We haven't decided for SCE and against QF. 

            4               What we're trying to do is, at this point with 

            5    evidentiary hearings in front of us, get through it 

            6    promptly, effectively, and then permit people to make 

            7    straightforward arguments with respect to proper 

            8    construction of a statute.

            9           ALJ COOKE:  At this point I do want to make 

           10    one further comment which is that in Exhibit 3 for CCC 

           11    the attachments RTB-2 through 5 that I just want to indicate 

           12    that I -- it's my understanding that these are attached for 

           13    ease of reference and we would accord them no more or less 

           14    significance than any other citations to the same reports 

           15    made by any other parties.

           16               Let's go off the record.  

           17               (Off the record)

           18           ALJ COOKE:  All right.  We'll be back on the record.

           19               While we were off the record, we discussed 

           20    the order of witnesses and order of cross for the 

           21    evidentiary hearings as we go forward tomorrow starting at 

           22    9:00 o'clock. 

           23               And Mr. Alcantar also has another motion.

           24           MR. ALCANTAR:  Yes, I'll be moving -- actually, I 

           25    just seek your authority under your subpoena authority to 

           26    solicit two Edison witnesses. 

           27               I think that, based upon your ruling and based 

           28    upon, frankly, what Commissioner Neeper had to say, the 
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            1    issue of legislative intent and filling this record out so 

            2    it is clear about what the principles were that went into 

            3    this statutory provision called to mind two particularly 

            4    pertinent Edison witnesses who have not been offered.  One 

            5    is Robert Foster and the other is John Fielder. 

            6               I would like the indulgence to be able to issue 

            7    subpoenas for them under your authority, of course, to have 

            8    them in this case.  We will make sure that our accommodation 

            9    of our either cross time or other witness time makes room 

           10    for those witnesses to be taken as adverse witnesses 

           11    on our behalf.

           12           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  You will take them as adverse 

           13    witnesses on what subject matter?

           14           MR. ALCANTAR:  On the subject of the legislative 

           15    intent and Edison's positions regarding what its 

           16    understanding was concerning Section 390(c) and (d) and 

           17    the changed circumstances that they are alluding to now 

           18    by their witnesses in terms of changing that legislative 

           19    intent or directive as they understood it.

           20               There is a fullness of this record that would be 

           21    wholly incomplete, it seems to me, without the individuals 

           22    who in fact negotiated and agreed to certain principles 

           23    before the Legislature who are not present before 

           24    this Commission from Edison pertaining to their positions 

           25    regarding this -- the interpretation of the statute.

           26           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Okay.  Let me see if 

           27    I understand.

           28           MR. ALCANTAR:  Okay.
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            1           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  These are two persons who 

            2    it sounds like participated in the discussions that occurred 

            3    in Sacramento relating to the adoption of 1890?

            4           MR. ALCANTAR:  Yes, and specifically with respect to 

            5    390.

            6           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  And were present and 

            7    participating on behalf of SCE with respect to the adoption 

            8    of 390?

            9           MR. ALCANTAR:  Absolutely.

           10           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  And you are going to examine 

           11    these witnesses and attempt to establish testimony that 

           12    would be admissible as reflective of legislative intent?

           13           MR. ALCANTAR:  As reflective of Edison's positions 

           14    in this case that are divergent from that direction or 

           15    agreement. 

           16               I can't suggest to you that two individuals make 

           17    legislative intent.  You know as well as I do that that's 

           18    not an admissible part of evidence. 

           19               But what I am trying to do is to impeach the 

           20    positions being taken by Edison's witnesses' sworn testimony 

           21    in this case by individuals who were, in fact, percipient to 

           22    Edison's position being taken before the Legislature.

           23           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Let me try again.

           24           MR. ALCANTAR:  Okay.

           25           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  I'm back in history as opposed 

           26    to now.  I'm back at the time of the discussions on what has 

           27    been referred to by the deal by Edison, an eminent a person 

           28    as Gregory Conlon with respect to 1890 and with respect to 
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            1    390. 

            2               Are these persons who are going to be -- you are 

            3    going to seek to have testify as to what happened up in 

            4    Sacramento at that time?

            5           MR. ALCANTAR:  Yes, as to Edison's intent at 

            6    the time.

            7           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Their knowledge as Edison --

            8           MR. ALCANTAR:  As representatives of Edison.

            9           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  -- of what they were doing 

           10    before the Legislature.

           11           MR. ALCANTAR:  Yes, and with parties such as myself.

           12           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Right.  Okay. 

           13               And are these persons who have any participation, 

           14    to your knowledge, in the formulation of present SCE policy 

           15    positions in this proceeding?

           16           MR. ALCANTAR:  They are -- one is the vice president, 

           17    senior vice president or executive vice president of 

           18    regulatory affairs. 

           19               I do not know to what extent -- although I know 

           20    he has been -- Mr. Fielder has been certainly consulted with 

           21    respect to issues in this case.  I don't know to what extent 

           22    he has reviewed testimony or approved it, but I intend to 

           23    elicit that.

           24           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  If allowed, you intend to seek 

           25    that information from Mr. Fielder --

           26           MR. ALCANTAR:  I do.

           27           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  -- and the other gentleman.

           28           MR. ALCANTAR:  And Mr. Foster is senior executive 
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            1    vice president as well.

            2           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Is this Robert Foster?

            3           MR. ALCANTAR:  Robert Foster.  And he was also --

            4           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Bruce was in the rear.

            5           MR. ALCANTAR:  Bruce is here, but Bruce was not there 

            6    when the discussion took place.

            7           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Okay.  He's made the 

            8    application.

            9               Now, I understand that it has two parts.

           10           ALJ COOKE:  Let's be off the record. 

           11               (Off the record)

           12           ALJ COOKE:  Back on the record.

           13               Mr. Woodruff, would you like to respond?

           14           MR. WOODRUFF:  Yes. 

           15               I have never heard of a proceeding in which the 

           16    legislative intent of -- legislative body was ascertained 

           17    from subpoenaing testimony from participants in the 

           18    legislative process after the statute was passed. 

           19               What we have offered as testimony simply shows 

           20    that market protocols that were in existence before the 

           21    legislation passed changed after the legislation passed.  

           22    That's a fact that is useful in this record in understanding 

           23    how Section 390(d) works, how Section 390 works.  

           24               But if Mr. Alcantar's motion is granted, it would 

           25    open the entire process into a circus.  There would be equal 

           26    grounds for subpoenaing every participant in the legislative 

           27    process including Mr. Alcantar.

           28           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  And Gregory Conlon.
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            1               (Laughter)

            2           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Okay.

            3           MR. WOODRUFF:  Most of the Legislature.

            4           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Can we take a brief break?

            5           ALJ COOKE:  Yes. 

            6               We'll be off the record, and we'll be back in 

            7    ten minutes to 3:00.

            8           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  At most ten minutes.  I'm happy 

            9    if you all just stayed here while we talk for about a minute 

           10    or two.  Just stick there and let us.

           11           ALJ COOKE:  We'll be off the record. 

           12               (Off the record)

           13           ALJ COOKE:  We'll be back on the record.

           14               Commissioner Neeper.

           15           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Okay.  I've -- the Judge and I 

           16    have talked, and I believe we've come to a common conclusion 

           17    that we wish to deny that motion to have subpoenas issued.

           18               With respect to the deal what I've referred to, 

           19    and I've laughingly referred to Commissioner Conlon who says 

           20    that he sat there the entire time at the adoption of -- the 

           21    consideration of adoption of 1890, there were 

           22    representations by hundreds of people that have occurred.  I 

           23    can't believe the number of people who sat in on that deal.

           24               We have heard as Commissioners from so many 

           25    different people telling us what the deal is, and the deal's 

           26    never the same.  It's always different.  And even from one 

           27    person we get different stories at different times. 

           28               It is not, I believe, going to be useful for us 
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            1    to conclude what was the legislative intent underlying 1890 

            2    or 390 from the testimony of two.  And we genuinely fear if 

            3    we allow the two, there are hundreds to follow maybe 

            4    sponsored by the CPUC themselves who won't say what the deal 

            5    was. 

            6               It's simply not going to be fruitful. 

            7               Whether or not it's permissible or not is a 

            8    matter of establishing legislative intent.  I just conclude 

            9    it's not going to be terribly useful for us. 

           10               And with respect to the second part, impeaching, 

           11    as I understand it, the opening statements, there have been 

           12    a number of representations as to the -- what's the title of 

           13    the document -- I gather it a document proposed or 

           14    recommended.

           15           MR. ALCANTAR:  The answer I performed originally?

           16           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  Consumers are writing and 

           17    there will be examination of that a little more.  Then we'll  

           18    appropriately give you the opportunity to do whatever 

           19    establishment of facts that you consider in order to make 

           20    the argument that there's been an unjustifiable change of 

           21    position -- there's been a change of position and 

           22    an unjustifiable position; and that SCE is obviously going 

           23    to argue there hasn't been a change in position nor a change 

           24    in circumstances and so forth. 

           25               So we do not find that that would be useful to 

           26    enhance the record in this way.

           27           MR. ALCANTAR:  My only point is that, to demonstrate 

           28    the last point which you just made which I think is critical 
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            1    to this case for this Commission to make an informed 

            2    judgment as to what positions were or weren't taken, the 

            3    only percipient witnesses to those -- to those particular 

            4    transactions with respect to Edison's commitments were these 

            5    two individuals that I'm aware of.  And that's why I sought 

            6    that. 

            7               But I understand your ruling, and we'll proceed.

            8           COMMISSIONER NEEPER:  All right.  I'm about to become 

            9    an advocate lawyer and get down and start making rebuttals 

           10    to your response to my surrebuttal to your whatever; 

           11    and I don't want to do that. 

           12               I've tried to capture for you the essence of 

           13    my thinking, of our thinking, in this regard, and what 

           14    we're trying to do is ultimately manage effectively 

           15    an administrative proceeding that has as an end, a very 

           16    important end.

           17               Obviously, I reply to you that a renewed motion 

           18    can be made at any time.  Counsel have been famous for 

           19    renewing motions time and time again as it seemed in 

           20    the interest of the client. 

           21               So that's our feeling at this time.  It's always 

           22    possible to change.

           23               Thank you, your Honor.

           24           ALJ COOKE:  Thank you.

           25               Is there anything else to come before 

           26    the Commission at this point? 

           27               (No response)

           28           ALJ COOKE:  Then we'll be adjourned until 9:00 a.m. 
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            1    tomorrow morning. 

            2               Thank you.

            3               

                            (Whereupon, at the hour of 3:24 p.m., 

            4         this matter having been continued to 

                      9:00 a.m., April 4, 2000, at San Francisco, 

            5         California, the Commission then adjourned.)

            6                            *  *  *  *  *
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